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Financial Highlights

BE_Z-NF=ZA=1t—HILFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018 Change

XEWEEEFor) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$’000)
Was Revenue 1,635,938 1,667,879 2%
FR LR A Profit before tax 124,007 129,143 4%
RAGERFFEA Profit attributable to equity holders

JEAha F of the Company 90,279 101,877 -11%
BERE Total assets 3,451,745 3,695,700 7%
IR R Shareholders’ funds 2,751,932 2,867,827 -4%
OB (TR AN Issued share capital 63,053 63,053 0%
MENE EFE Net current assets 1,612,556 1,675,542 4%
BREE PER SHARE DATA
FRERBF(ENM) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 14.3 16.2 -12%
SIRIRERE (EN) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 7.0 8.0 -13%
GREEFE(ET) Net assets per share (HK$) 4.4 4.6 -4%
FEHKE R KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
TP EEZEERE (%)  Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 3.2 3.7 _14%
T BREMEMBOIEHRE (%) Return on average total assets (%) 2.5 2.9 -14%

R B
Shareholders’ Calendar

BREAEARSE
20198 4228 (2 HIM ) N PUBFIE

Annual General Meeting (AGM)
22 August 2019 (Thursday) at 4:00 p.m.

BRERZ M Register of Shareholders

TIEREBERNBPFEL(HEMRXBIEEN) Closure of Register (both days inclusive)

£ AR R R 4 K 3 R 201948A19H=22H For attending AGM 19 — 22 August 2019
(EH—z=E28m) (Mon — Thu)

REANR BE A 20198 A28HE30H For Final Dividend 28 — 30 August 2019
(EH==287A) (Wed — Fri)

BRE(ER) Dividend (per Share)

HEAAR B L3011l Interim Dividend HK3.0 cents

KE B HA 2019F1A118(E8H) Paid on 11 January 2019 (Fri)

REARR B 4 01l Final Dividend HK4.0 cents

K3 B AR 20199 A 13 (EH#H) Payable on or about : 13 September 2019 (Fri)
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Corporate Information

Honorary Chairman
Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBMm

Directors
Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer and
was appointed Chairman on 23 April 2018)

Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (was appointed Deputy Chairman on
23 April 2018)

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG (retired as Director on 19 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Audit Committee

Mr. Anish LALVANI (Chairman)
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (Chairman)
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG

Nomination Committee

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN (Chairman)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE (Chairman)

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG (ceased to be committee member on
19 April 2019)

Mr. Tak Shing CHOI (was appointed committee member on
27 June 2019)

Company Secretary
Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN
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Chairman’s Statement

Business Review

For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has registered
a slight turnover decline of 2% to HK$1,636 million (2018: HK$1,668
million) as compared with last year. Profit attributable to equity
holders declined by 11% to HK$90 million (2018: HK$102 million) as
compared with last year.

Worldwide economic conditions were in turmoil during this financial
year. Although everybody still held onto the motto of “peaceful
development” popular in these times, the poison of protectionism
and unilateralism that quietly but surely took roots in USA and was
starting to materially affect global economic conditions. Sino-American
disagreements over trade imbalances escalated into serious disputes
and finally deadlocks, which ended up with unilateral declaration by
USA of broad tariffs imposed on Chinese imports in the second half
year of 2018, and the subsequent in-kind retaliation from China. The
first shots of a “trade war” were fired.

As the fallouts quickly encircled the globe, all the countries’ economy
were affected, albeit to a larger or lesser extent. For instance,
we witnessed developing countries being hit with huge currency
devaluations and political crises; in Europe, populism and nationalism
was on the rise, causing major incidents of social unrest. All these
were hardly coincidental and more likely related to USA protectionist
actions.

Global manufacturing sentiments fell off a cliff during the second half
of this financial year, as the whole world appeared to be struck by an
acute confidence crisis. Severe economic pressure caused China’s
Gross Domestic Product “GDP” growth rate dropped to new lows in
2018, with an exodus of foreign investments and Renminbi exchange
rate nearing the barrier level of 7. In face of such an adverse and
challenging business environment, even though the Group results
did not meet expectations, | nevertheless believe that our team had
given their hard work, relentless preparations, detailed planning and
constant monitoring in order to mitigating the adverse effect of this
economic shock.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Chairman’s Statement

Chen Hsong has always been holding true to our core value of “Quality
is of Paramount Importance, Technology is our Core Competence”.
The all-new SPARK series of all-electric injection moulding machines
was launched during this year — a marvel of engineering combining
high performance, rock-solid stability and superior reliability into a
remarkably affordable package. Needless to say, we have very high
expectation for this new product series, which is well positioned to
dominate the lucrative (but currently unserved) tier between low-end
China-made all electric machines and high-end imports.

Future Prospects

In response to current economic difficulties, the China Government
introduced a number of measures in response to the current economic
difficulties — e.g. tax reduction and lowering of bank reserve ratios
— measures which effects were not yet apparent but nevertheless
indicated Central Government commitment to continued economic
growth. In the near future, | believe that worldwide economic
prospects will continue to be uncertain, largely linked to progress of
the Sino-American trade war and the trend of the exchange rate of U.S.
Dollar as well as rising protectionist and unilateralist sentiments in the
USA.

The Group shall keep to our founding values of persistence and
perseverance to face future challenges ahead. We shall continue
to invest into improving quality, developing new technologies and
opening up new worldwide markets in order to maintain our core
competitiveness.

| believe large-tonnage two-platen injection moulding machines
have remained a bright spot; so for the months to come, the Group
will continue to focus its efforts on enhancing and upgrading this
product line-up. As Sino-American confrontation enters a new phase
of severity, we are fully aware that, this time, China may no longer
lead the world out of a global recession. Nevertheless, our operation
strategy will not differ — i.e. prudent financial controls, a balanced
approach towards market opportunities and risks, and strong cash
flow management. We do this to safe-guard the interests of all equity
holders.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Finally, | report that on 28 November 2018, the Group signed a
Framework Cooperation Agreement with a third-party joint venture
partner for preliminary investigation for some of the Group’s land plots
located in Shenzhen. This project is merely in its early stage, and the
Group will further disclose as required by law when additional news
come up in the future.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the management team,
I would like to take this opportunity to thank Dr. Chiang for his
invaluable contributions. In addition, on behalf of the Board of
Directors, | give my heartfelt thanks to all shareholders of the Chen
Hsong Group, customers, suppliers, business partners, and banks for
their long-term support, and to our loyal and industrious management
team and employees for their continued contributions over the years.

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Business Performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Group registered
essentially flat (dropped by 2%) total turnover to HK$1,636 million
(2018: HK$1,668 million). Profit attributable to equity holders
was HK$90 million (2018: HK$102 million). Basic earnings per
share was HK14.3 cents (2018: HK16.2 cents). Profit attributable
to equity holders already included an extra HK$12 million in net
foreign exchange losses and HK$42 million in additional investment
properties revaluation gains as compared with last year. The Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0 cents (2018:
HK5.0 cents) per share for this financial year.

This financial year marked the 10th anniversary of the last global
financial crisis which started from collapse of the USA sub-mortgage
market and ended with global economic devastation. Now in 2018, ten
whole years later, global economic recovery remained lacklustre with
new sources of instability rearing their ugly heads across the globe,
such as unilateralism and protectionism. During the first half of the
financial year, economic growth in major countries around the world
appeared to have reached a plateau, while some developing countries
were plagued by monetary and political turmoil. The Purchasing
Managers’ Index “PMI” figures of major industrial economies (including
China but excluding USA) all fell off a cliff, which indicated an
alarming contraction of the global manufacturing sector. The USA, in
the meantime, proactively seek disputes with many other countries on
trade issues, including starting an epic “trade war” with China. These
protectionist actions triggered the widespread rise of populism and
nationalism worldwide, causing geopolitical disputes while disrupting
business sentiments everywhere.

Unilateralistic policies from the US Government, as the prime
leading example, wiped out long-established trade arrangements
practically overnight, encouraged arguments where there were none,
and increasingly built up tariff barriers on a global scale. As USA
protectionist actions remained unchecked and unchallenged, many
countries in the world also started in-fighting among themselves — e.g.
sanctions on Russia and Iran, Brexit, and Qatar leaving the OPEC —
resulting in rising social instabilities — e.g. Italian budget deadlock,
and French “yellow-vests” movements — and greatly increasing to the
uncertainties surrounding global economic prospects.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

PMI in most industrial countries in the world crashed through the
50 line and dropped to multi-year lows during the second half of the
financial year, an indication that global manufacturing was in a state
of acute decline — a state that would eventually persist until the first
quarter of 2019. USA was the only bright spot among all western
countries while Europe remained unhealthily weak. Among regions
of developing countries, growth in Asia remained relatively healthy
while others slowed down significantly; some countries (Argentina,
Russia and Turkey in particular, India lesser so) encountered such
catastrophic events as large-scale currency devaluation, exodus of
foreign investments, stock market crash and sovereign debt crisis,
causing red lights galore to flash on global market watcher screens.

The Group’s turnover was sound entering into the first quarter of
this financial year, but as the Sino-American trade war officially
commenced in July, China PMI’'s crashed through the 50 line and
the Renminbi exchange rate challenged the threshold level of 7,
everything started going south simultaneously, and the Group ended
the first half-year with only minor growth in turnover. Global economic
sentiments further deteriorated through the second half of the financial
year, reaching bottom in the final quarter. Still, the Group managed
only a slight decline in full-year turnover, but as competition became
cut-throat during the economic downtime and many customers
putting investments on hold, heavy pressure was levied on the Group’s
average selling price. This, together with rising raw material prices
in China (especially iron and steel) which placed further pressure on
costs, were the main causes behind the drop in profits.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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HiE D Market Analysis
BE-_ZE—-—HLE= ﬂ +—HIEFEE - % Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the
BRI EI DM EEEINAT year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows:

2019 2018

(BEEr) (EEEZET) bo

5 i Customer Location (HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
B K RE R BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,062 1,121 -5%
=0 Taiwan 125 126 -1%
HAhINER Other overseas countries 449 421 +7%

1,636 1,668 2%
FEEER_T—NFIEK66% ' FEAT  China's Gross Domestic Product “GDP” growth in 2018 official ended
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up to be 6.6% — a 28-year new low — largely due to the Sino-American
trade war which resulted in tariff barriers erected on both sides. Right
after the opening shots of the trade war, China manufacturing PMI
rapidly crashed through the 50 line to a new 10-year low and stayed
depressed until the first quarter of 2019. Import/export figures also
showed a shocking shrinkage in December 2018, while factory activity
indices deteriorated rapidly in January 2019. The China economy

appeared to be weakening more quickly than expected.

The direct consequence of this weakening was an exodus of foreign
investments, with foreign exchange reserves and a hammered stock
market both registering largest drops in recent years. Persistent
devaluation of the Renminbi also helped to accelerate the net outflow
of foreign funds. Domestically, the tariffs and loss of business dealt
made a heavy blow on general market confidence, leading to increased
closing of factories which in turn led to rising unemployment. In
fact, soon after the start of the Sino-American trade war, the Central
Government specifically cautioned regional government departments
In addition, this
economic downturn also magnified the seriousness of the regional

to watch out for signs of “structural unemployment”.

government debt crisis.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Despite the extremely difficult market conditions, the Group managed
to keep turnover decline in China within 5% for the financial year. This
was mostly due to continued market popularity of the new MK6 “Sixth
Generation” series of high-performance machines and the advanced
two-platen large-tonnage models. At the end, the Group registered
total turnover in China of HK$1,062 million (2018: HK$1,121 million).

Internationally, global economies mostly continued their mild growth
trends during the beginning of this financial year, although there
were already signs of slow-down. USA, on the other hand, exceeded
expectations, which was probably the reason why it felt compelled to
pick fights over trade agreements with numerous worldwide trading
partners. With the U.S. Federal Reserve’s rate-rise cycle in full force
leading to funds outflow from many developing countries in the world,
and with protectionism and unilateralism rising under its banner, these
reckless USA foreign policies would seriously disturb, and irreparably
break-down the long-established international trade rules.

Market-wise, for most of the year, the Eurozone still remained relatively
buoyant, and a number of important developing countries all posted
respectable growth prospects — e.g. in India, Russia and Brazil. As a
result, the Group registered strong turnover growth in the USA, Latin
America (especially Brazil) and Europe. On the other hand, the Group
underperformed in Asia and India, and especially in the Middle East
which was plagued by political instabilities. As a whole, the Group’s
international turnover grew by 7% over the same period last year to
HK$449 million (2018: HK$421 million).

Taiwan customers were highly dependent on developed European
and USA markets, so as a group they were relative stable during this
financial year. The Group’s Taiwan turnover remained essentially flat
at HK$125 million (2018: HK$126 million).

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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FREMEFTERER Development of New Technologies and New Products

—E-)N\FELEHEEK NN TESE - &K 2018 was the 60th anniversary of Chen Hsong Group. The Group held
EERN T \F+_A+-_BHEIEEMmEE a large “Chen Hsong Super New Products Carnival” in the Shunde
BTE—REHBETEREESEE] - 84 production facility on 12 December 2018, invited about 700 customers
BRI TERAEPRAERNES - @k and business partners to participate. Four all-new product lines were
R HER  BECZRIGE 2 H[MIEA  launched during the event — it was rarely seen in the industry lately.
THIZER M -

pd

R EFERD BIE The four new product launches were:

o BRHEFMNSmEENE L MSPARK The most talked-about, most demanded, “SPARK” series of high-

=YX performance all-electric injection moulding machines
o MK6e[ B hx & B L+ 2B # R7 e MK6e “evolution” series of affordable machines
o MK6[FE /SR R ZE 11,6008 AT % e An extension of the MK6 “Sixth Generation” product line to 1,600
tons
o MK6 XLAREB ARG B = )T 2 14 e MK6 XL ultra-large shot-volume injection moulding machines
<] CHEN HSONG

SPARKI 2 X | ZH 2 BA T LEH#
The All-New SPARK Series of All-Electric Injection Moulding Machine
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Among these new launches, the “SPARK” series of all-electric
machines completely stole the limelight. This all-new product line
differs from traditional China-made all-electric competition in that it
is the result of years of strategic technical cooperation and guidance
from Japanese technology, with an unmatched mixture of speed,
reliability, performance, flexibility and adaptability. It is a product that
seeks to break through the technical glass ceiling between traditional
China-made all-electric machines and high-end Japanese all-electric
machines. The Group is highly confident that, before long, the
“SPARK” will become synonymous with high-end all-electrics in the
China market.

Another all-new product line, the MK6e “evolution” series, is no less
impressive. As the Group’s next star product, the MK6e will help to
better serve specific market segments which require high flexibility
and adaptability in production, while the higher-performing MK6 series
can focus on high-end applications. The letter “e” in “MK6e” stands
for “evolution,” indicating that, instead of being a complete redesign, it
is a natural “next step” for the ultra-popular MK6 line. The Group has
absolute confidence in the market competitiveness of this new series.

JETMASTER MKe6e Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine

RIERBARAR 2019 44
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Production Efficiency and Capacity

During this financial year, the Group has been increasingly focusing
on production cost control (including labour costs) as a means
towards improving margins. Continuous improvement programs
had broad participation from all ranks of the manufacturing system,
including production, logistics, planning and operations management.
They worked diligently together to ensure the all-rounded increase of
operation efficiency, quality, as well as capacity for new product lines
and application-specific solutions.

A major focus in all of the Group’s manufacturing facilities was “7S”
production management as well as a TPM project, both of which
strived to enhance the state of production equipment and working
environment, ultimately improving efficiency. At the Shunde facility,
the Group invested in a new, pilot, fully-automated production line
for hydraulic cylinder parts. Production went on-line in due time and
the project was a full success. This gave the Group much strong
confidence to expand the use of automation solutions in the future.

Finally, the Group held tightly to calls by the Central Government for
sustainable manufacturing, environmental protection and occupational
safety. The Group consistently monitored its power usage and
emissions and seek to reduce both as much as possible.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,613
million (2018: HK$1,676 million), which represented a 4% decrease
over last year. Cash and bank balances (including pledged deposits)
amounted to HK$688 million (2018: HK$659 million), representing
an increase of HK$29 million as compared to last year. The bank
borrowing was HK$74 million (2018: HK$25 million), increased by
HK$49 million, which was short term loan with floating interest rates
for general working capital purposes. The Group recorded a net cash
position of HK$614 million (2018: HK$634 million), representing a
decrease of HK$20 million.

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total borrowings net of
cash and bank balances divided by total assets. The Group had a net
cash position as at 31 March 2019. As a result, no gearing ratio was
presented.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained with
appropriate levels of borrowings to meet the funding requirements of
the Group’s investments and operations.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2019, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the amount of HK$20 million (2018: HK$47 million) were
pledged, including HK$11 million (2018: HK$20 million) for securing
bank loans granted by banks in Mainland China to customers to
purchase the Group’s products, HK$9 million (2018: HK$27 million)
for securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, recorded in the
trade and bills payables, to suppliers.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments of HK$7
million (2018: HK$8 million), mainly in respect of the construction
of industrial buildings and the purchases of production equipment in
Mainland China which are to be funded by internal resources of the
Group.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its funding. Funds,
are primarily denominated in the Hong Kong Dollar, the Renminbi,
the New Taiwanese Dollar, the U.S. Dollar and the Euro, are generally
placed with banks in short or medium term deposits for working
capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a borrowing in Japanese yen
equivalent to HK$24 million (2018: HK$25 million) for payments to
suppliers in Japanese yen. The Group, from time to time, assesses the
risk exposure on certain volatile foreign currencies and manages it in
appropriate manner to minimize the risk.

The Group has substantial investments in Mainland China and is
aware that any fluctuation of the Renminbi would have an impact on
the net profits of the Group. However, since most of the transactions
of the Group are conducted with the Renminbi, the direct impact
from the exchange losses on the Group’s operations and cash flows is
slight.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group provided (i) guarantees to banks
amounted to HK$11 million (2018: HK$38 million) for bank loans
granted to customers to purchase the Group’s products; and (ii)
performance guarantees to a bank amounted to HK$3 million (2018:
HK$3 million) provided to customers.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

It has long been the Group’s motto to “Deliver to Customers All That
They Need”, and to the maximum extent possible the Group puts
the interests and needs of our customers as its primary reason of
being. This includes providing the Group’s customers with the best
designed products, the best quality, and timely, appropriate pre/after-
sales services. Similarly, the Group views its suppliers not as mere
vendors but as strategic partners, important links in its supply chain.
It is the Group’s procurement policy to maintain good relationship and
communications with suppliers based on the principle of mutual trust.

In the end, the ultimate goal of the Group with regards to customers
and suppliers is “Win-Win”. The Group believes this to be beyond
question and explanation.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection,
leading the industry in minimizing the impact of its activities on the
environment, and compliance with applicable environmental laws. The
Group has implemented effective Environmental Protection Policy (the
“Policy”) that enables the Group to making progress in environmental
protection.

Under the Policy, the Group focuses on promoting clean production,
and strives to making the most efficient use of resources in its
operations, and minimizing waste and emission. The Group achieves
this aim through actively re-designing its activities and production
methods that encourage and promote recycling of resources, using
environmentally-friendly raw materials and reviewing production
operations constantly to ensure that the processes are effective and
efficient.

The Group enlists its support by engaging and promoting
environmental protection among its suppliers and customers and
implementing training programmes that raise environmental protection
awareness among its employees. Through realistic and achievable key
performance targets, the Group measures the impact of its activities
on the local environment continuously, and conducts research and
explores potential innovative green alternatives that support a green
environment.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan, while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Taiwan and the respective places of incorporation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board was
unaware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had approximately 2,300 (2018:
2,500) full-time employees. The Group offers good remuneration and
welfare packages to its employees and maintains market-competitive
pay levels. Employees are rewarded based on individual as well as the
results performance of the Group.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Outlook for the Coming Year

Economic conditions for the coming year will be highly dependent on
Sino-American trade relations. As the USA imposed a new round of
tariffs, all hopes of a cease-fire became distant, and protectionism
replaced trust in global trade. China itself is plagued by numerous
domestic issues, such as a slowing economy, blocked trade venues,
devaluating currency, escalating real estate bubble, runaway regional
government debt and outflow of foreign reserves. It is unlikely that any
effective measures to combat the current situation without causing
more internal problems would be easy for Central Government to
formulate.

The Group believes that the market conditions in China will continue
to be lacklustre in the near future over uncertainties over the trade war
with USA. International markets will also feel the dark pressure of USA
unilateralism, making any predictions unreliable. The only thing that
is certain is that the Group will continue to do its best in launching
new products and breaking into customers of different application
industries in order to maximize market share and protect growth.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Lai Yuen CHIANG B4, Jp

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director of
the Company in 2000 and Chairman of the board of the Company on
23 April 2018. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
responsible for the management and business development of the
Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the
Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited and
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited, substantial shareholders of
the Company. She is the sole Director and shareholder of Proficient
City Investments Limited (deemed a substantial shareholder of the
Company by virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). She
holds a bachelor degree of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has
extensive experience in production management, sales and marketing.
Ms. Chiang is an Independent Non-executive Director of Hang Seng
Bank Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).
She is also a member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, standing committee
member of the Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Vice-Chairman of the Federation of
Shenzhen Industries and Vice-President of China Shenzhen Machinery
Assaciation. Ms. Chiang was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2004. Ms.
Chiang, aged 53, is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s daughter and the sister of Mr.
Chi Kin CHIANG.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Chi Kin CHIANG Bsc
Deputy Chairman and President — Group Manufacturing

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003 and Deputy Chairman of the Board of the
Company on 23 April 2018. He also holds the position of President —
Group Manufacturing responsible for the manufacturing function of
the Group. Mr. Chiang holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of
the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is the sole Director
and shareholder of Peckham Ventures Limited (deemed a substantial
shareholder of the Company by virtue of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance). Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor degree of Applied Science in
Industrial Design from Rochester Institute of Technology, New York.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chiang had six years’ experience in
industrial design, working for a multinational company in the U.S.A..
Mr. Chiang is the Vice President of China Plastics Machinery Industry
Association. Mr. Chiang, aged 52, is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s son and the
brother of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG w84, Bsc

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief
Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science
from the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA
degree in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A..
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chung, aged 52, had more than 14
years' experience in sales and marketing, management consultancy,
financial analysis and information technology.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN BA, BsSc

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He
is currently a Director of IB Partners Pte Limited and Head of
International Business Development at Central Pattana PCL (listed
on The Stock Exchange of Thailand (“the SET”)). He was the Chief
Executive Officer and a Director of Raimon Land Public Company
Limited (listed on the SET) from May 2013 to June 2016 and from
February 2013 to June 2017, respectively. Mr. Tan has over 20
years’ experience in investment banking based out of New York,
Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles with leading
financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg, Macquarie
and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was the Chief
Executive Officer and regional head for their South East Asia corporate
finance business. He has advised major corporations and government
authorities across the region. Mr. Tan, aged 58, graduated from the
National University of Singapore and was a recipient of the Lim Tay
Boh gold medal and NUS Economics Society Book Prize.

Anish LALVANI Bsc, MBA, FHKIoD

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He
is the Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has
business interests in Hong Kong, Europe, Africa and the Middle East.
He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A., India and Hong Kong
and holds an MBA degree from the University of San Diego. Mr.
Lalvani has extensive marketing experience in the emerging markets
and an in-depth knowledge of electrical appliances manufacturers
in China — many of whom have in-house moulding facilities. He is
the former Chairman for both the North Asia Region and the Hong
Kong Chapter of the Young Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani,
aged 53, is a member of the Hong Kong Friends’ Committee of Asian
Cultural Council, a Director of Kew Asia Foundation, a Member of
Kew Foundation Council, a Member of the HKUST Business School
Advisory Council and a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He resigned as a Trustee of Kew Foundation and a Director of Harvard
Business School Association of Hong Kong Limited on 4 July 2017
and 17 August 2017, respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Bernard Charnwut CHAN ¢ss, Jp
(formerly known as CHAN Chi Sze Bernard)

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. Mr.
Chan, aged 54, is a graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A..
He has been elected a Deputy to the National People’s Congress of
the People’s Republic of China since January 2008. He is member
of Executive Council and a former member of the Legislative Council
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Chan is the
Chairman of Hong Kong Palace Museum Ltd., the Hong Kong-Thailand
Business Council, the Committee on Reduction of Salt and Sugar in
Food and the Steering Committee on Restored Landfill Revitalisation
Funding Scheme. In addition, he serves as the Chairperson of The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service and a Board Member of West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority. Mr. Chan is currently an Executive
Director and the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. (listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”))
and Asia Insurance Company, Limited and an advisor to Bangkok
Bank (China) Company Limited. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited, Yau
Lee Holdings Limited and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan resigned as a Non-executive
Director of City e-Solutions Limited on 9 September 2016, which is
listed on the Stock Exchange. He also resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director of Wing Lung Bank Limited on 19 September
2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Michael Tze Hau LEE B4, vBA

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is
a director of Oxer Limited, a private investment company. Mr. Lee
started his career in the investment industry in 1987 and has since
held senior management positions in multinational investment
companies including Indosuez Asia Investment Services Limited
and Lloyd George Management. He also co-founded Asia Strategic
Investment Management Limited in 1995. Mr. Lee, aged 58, was
educated in the U.S.A. and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from
Bowdoin College and a Master of Business Administration Degree
from Boston University. Mr. Lee was a member of each of the Main
Board and Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committees of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is a Non-
executive Director of Hysan Development Company Limited and an
Independent Non-executive Director of Trinity Limited, both of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange; and a Steward of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is
committed to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for
the following deviations:

Code provision A.4.2 provides that every director should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The directors
of the Company (except the Chairman of the Company) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years as the Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda provides that the
chairman and managing director of the Company are not required to
retire by rotation.

Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman of the
Board (with effect from 23 April 2018) and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Given the skills and experience of Ms. CHIANG and her
long term of service with the Group, this structure can be considered
appropriate to the Group and can provide the Group with strong and
consistent leadership for effective and efficient business planning and
decisions, as well as execution of long term business strategies.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of three executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Note:

Ms. Lai Yuen Chiang (Chairman appointed on 23 April 2018, Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer) is the sister of Mr. Chi Kin Chiang (Deputy
Chairman appointed on 23 April 2018 and Executive Director).

The biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 18 to 22
of this annual report. Each director brings a wide range and years of
business and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined
experience, knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the
Group’s business.

A list of directors of the Company and their role and function is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business
plans; to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices
throughout the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and
manage risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.
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Delegation to Management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to
the Management comprising all executive directors, management
staff, and operating heads of different business units. The main
responsibilities of the Management are to implement the strategies
and business plans set by the Board and to manage the Group’s
business operations in accordance with the policies and directives of
the Board.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held five meetings throughout the year at approximately
quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies and the operating and
financial performance of the Group. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in setting the agenda for Board meetings in consultation
with all directors. Notice of at least 14 days is given to all directors for
all regular Board meetings, and all directors are given opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of Board
meetings are circulated to all directors for comments. Minutes of
Board meetings with details of matters considered by the Board and
decision reached are kept by the Company Secretary and open for
inspection by the directors.
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REZE-ZE—HNE=A=+—HILZHEEE During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, five Board meetings
N AARHBITRARESEREE2S: L XIKE  and one general meeting were held and the attendance record of each

Reg BUESZHFELHHINWOT : director is as follows:
EERER BRAE
HEREEERE HEREEERH
EENE Number of Board Meetings | Number of General Meetings
Name of Director Attended/Held Attended/Held
BITES
Executive Directors
BEELT(RZZ2—/\FEAZT=RHELMAE 0/1 TiE A
FERESE) N.A.
Dr. Chen CHIANG (retired as Chairman and
Director on 23 April 2018)
BEAZT(RERE AR - N\FHOA=+=H 5/5 1/1
BZEAEER)
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer and
was appointed as Chairman on 23 April 2018)
BEBEERZZE-N\FOAZ+=BEZTA 5/5 1/1
BlEFE)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (was appointed as
Deputy Chairman on 23 April 2018)
ERREE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
REFEFE(RZZT-NFUA+NLHBEREES) 4/5 1/1
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
(retired as Director on 19 April 2019)
BYEHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BREE 4 5/5 1/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANIS 4 5/5 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PR B A 5/5 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
RFEEAE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
26 EHSEABRAR 2019 Fif CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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The agenda and accompanying board papers for regular Board
meetings are sent out in full package to all directors at least three days
before the date of a Board meeting. All directors have access to board
papers and related materials and may, in appropriate circumstances,
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who ensures that board procedures and applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on
directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business.
The Company reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual
basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, Ms. Lai Yuen
CHIANG was the Chairman of the Board (with effect from 23 April
2018) and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly to ensure
the accountability and responsibility with respect to the management
of the Company.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer focuses on overall corporate
development and high-level strategic directions of the Group, provides
leadership to the Board, and oversees the efficient functioning of the
Board.

She is responsible for managing the business of the Group, policy
making and corporate management and the implementation of
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board with the support from
the Management.

As at the date of this report, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Pursuant to
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, given the skills
and experience of Ms. CHIANG and her long term of service with the
Group, this structure can be considered appropriate to the Group
and can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership for
effective and efficient business planning and decisions, as well as
execution of long term business strategies.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

27



28

TEERBRESE

BYFIITES

ARREBUBLIFRTERTCEARBRILE
& EHRATHBE=F YARBARFZ
N AR R TE o (BB A N A] B R B AL -

ARFCEESELFATESRE LHARA
EINMGHEAREBIL NN FERERL - IREE
e BN ERN B FNITERRERE
B FEHER K - WR BB B IFNTT
EEHMABTE(RR EWR R RAENE
£)  BUFNTEEWATARZHMEHA
BEREREBYM  RENYEATHHRERNGE
PRBHAART]

WRAEBZERTEATERRABSTHEN
SmER ZEREHBELIFNTEEEE - ¥
RBEB L BRNARBRREFRIAS L1
MEER S BEHBYIFRTEFARNE
ERESRBUBRREHRER -

EERRABILINTEZANEZRNESER
BETHZESFLNERMMELERNES

ESCRERIIRRE

EREZEMAZZR/E - SEFUE—MHFE
ZABER - REARNREBEREXM B
FEFARERESTE R AEREERT
FAHREBITEEZER  UWERETSBEEE
REMRAREMHEREERE T ZEE -

EXENCHEGN AR LMRA  bEERT
M BEAPIZ BRI RARRNRBER - B

FEFREBEEBELRRHOME  REE—
E-NF=ZA=t-BZMBRFEACREHS
BIEM - REAREMERZ LB HTES
B2 IEASN G T ET & o

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
is subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee reviewed and
assessed the individual independent non-executive director’s annual
confirmation of independence and considered all independent non-
executive directors remained independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules. The independent non-executive director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his independence.

The independent non-executive directors will take lead in considering
matters which a substantial shareholder or a director has conflict of
interest. Board committee comprising independent non-executive
directors will be formed to advise the independent shareholders
on connected transaction to be approved by the independent
shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company.

The Board is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and
guidance that the independent non-executive directors have been
giving to the Board and the Board committees.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

On appointment to the Board, each director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering the Company’s constitutional documents,
the policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general,
statutory and regulatory obligations of being a director to ensure that
he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and other relevant requirements.

The directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, other regulatory
regime and the business development of the Company. To keep
abreast of the responsibilities of the directors and infuse them with
new knowledge, reading materials had been provided during the
financial year ended 31 March 2019. Apart from what the Company
had arranged, some of the directors also attended other external
training seminars.
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FrEEEARAATIRMEMPIAZ2BEAIE 2 The directors are required to provide the Company with details of the
BE o BIBFTIZHEMNER - REZE=-Z—HhFE training undertaken by them. Based on the details so provided, the
“A=1t+—HItZHEEERN  FFTEES2LE  training undertaken by the directors during the financial year ended
I T 31 March 2019 is summarized as follows:

2HER BHER REEHRE
EHNg Mg Hwe

(BB ES5EME  FRREEER)
Reading Materials/Journals and/or
Attending Briefings/Presentations/
Seminars/Conferences

(Relevant to the Business,

=Y Directors’ Duties, Regulatory &
Name of Director Corporate Governance)
HITES

Executive Directors

BEET(RZE— N \FOAZ+=RAEREEFELES) v
Dr. Chen CHIANG (retired as Chairman and Director on 23 April 2018)

BEALT(REAE RN - N\FUA -+ =-BEZEREF) v
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer and was appointed as
Chairman on 23 April 2018)

BEREA(RZZ-N\FOA-T=REZTERIEFE) v
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (was appointed as Deputy Chairman on
23 April 2018)

ERREE v
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

REERFE(RZE-NEFOA+NBREESE) v
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG (retired as Director on 19 April 2019)

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BREE e 4 v
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISE & 4
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PR S B A v
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

RFREEAE v
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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Confirmations have been received from the directors that they are
able to devote sufficient time as and when required to discharge their
responsibility as a director of the Company. Besides, the directors
have disclosed to the Company their interest as director and other
offices in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments in a timely manner and have updated the Company on
any subsequent changes.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company,
after having made specific enquiry of all directors, confirms that all
directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Code
of Conduct and the Model Code throughout the financial year ended
31 March 2019.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of
this report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson Chin
Kwang TAN, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau
LEE. Mr. Anish LALVANI is the Committee Chairman.

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating
to the Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control and overseeing the Company'’s relationship with the Company’s
external auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have
been updated and approved by the Board in December 2018 to bring
them in line with the amendments in Listing Rules and are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings (totalling four sessions)
during the financial year ended 31 March 2019 to review with the
Company'’s internal and external auditor, the Group’s internal controls
and financial results and related matters. The attendance record of
each member is as follows:

EREZEEERE HEREEERH
Members of Audit Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BAIFHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

Anish LALVANISE &
Mr. Anish LALVANI

BREE e
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

% B /u\?ﬁ/_‘-t
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

RFREEA
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

RBZEZZ ﬂ¢ A=+—RLEZHRFE
N BEZRBEECDHETT:

o REAKEEZFERTHYBHHRE BRI

R R - S BN AR BRAD 5 A
o EHMEFEAZEE  ULMMEHAEE

ﬂ?ﬁ‘%#&i‘éz%’i ;

o SUERIMNEZEENIE L ER e
ER

i E B

o RFNAKREANMEIERRZEMIL

—N\/ZE-NFHRETE

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee
had:

e reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
auditor;

e reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts
on the Group’s financial statements;

e made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditor
and reviewed their audit fees;

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

approved the 2018/2019 Internal Audit Plan;
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e reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of the Management;

e reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

e reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements;

e reviewed the annual plan on risk management control;

e reviewed the update on risk management; and

e reviewed the risk assessment reports.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut
CHAN, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr.
Michael Tze Hau LEE, and the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. Mr. Bernard Charnwut
CHAN is the Committee Chairman. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews
and determines the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management and to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Group with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration
Committee considers factors such as duties and responsibilities of
the executive directors and senior management and the amount of
remuneration paid by comparable companies.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Remuneration of executive directors comprises salary, allowances,
performance related bonus and pension scheme contributions.
Information about directors’ emoluments during the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 is set out in note 9 to the financial statements
of this annual report.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the financial
year ended 31 March 2019. The attendance record of each member is
as follows:

FMEESERE

Members of Remuneration Committee

HERE ERRE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BYFITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

PR B A
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

BREE K e 4
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISEAE
Mr. Anish LALVANI

FIF 2 54
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

I RERARKRITES

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

ERAZT(RZE-— N \FOA-+=BEZARER) 2/2
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (was appointed as Chairman on 23 April 2018)

REBE_Z-NF=ZA=T+—HIZHMERFE
W FHMEZE e HEES 2 @RIRR MEAE
FREERH ZRER  BROTBRNTES
(AFRARASREEAR) ZHE RIEA
ARBIIFMTES 2T - WEENEEHE
ERLMERAAZHTMERE -

For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed and approved matters relating to the
salaries and bonus of the executive directors (also being the senior
management of the Company) and the fee of the independent non-
executive directors after assessing their individual performance and
in consultation with the proposals of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. No individual director took part in voting his/her own
remuneration at the meeting.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. As at the date
of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr.
Anish LALVANI, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze
Hau LEE. Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN is the Committee Chairman.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
updated and approved by the Board in November 2018 to bring them
in line with the amendments in Listing Rules and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and making recommendations on
any proposed change to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted and revised the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”)
in November 2018 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Policy is summarized below:

e |n reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at least
annually, the Nomination Committee will consider a number of
aspects of the Board diversity, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional qualifications
and experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and industry and
regional experience (the “Board Diversity Criteria”).

e |n selection and nomination of qualified individuals to become
Board members, the Nomination Committee will consider the
Board Diversity Criteria.

e The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a Nomination Policy in November 2018 which
sets out the criteria and process on the nomination and appointment
of directors. The Board has delegated the relevant selection and
appointment of directors to the Nomination Committee, which
identifies suitable qualified candidates to become Board members
and recommends them to the Board. In assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate, the Nomination Committee would assess and
evaluate the candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications, skills,
experience, gender and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity
Policy that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy, devoting adequate time to effectively carry out their duties,
and fulfilment of the independence requirements as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules (for independent non-executive director).
After the evaluation, the Nomination Committee nominates the
appropriate candidate to the Board for approval and appointment.
For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as
a director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship. Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee should
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed
election of director at the general meeting.

REBE_Z-NAE=A=+—BILZMKEE The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the financial
N IREEESLRITMAES - §RkKE 2  year ended 31 March 2019. The attendance record of each member is
SR B 5 I T as follows:
REZEERE HERE ERRH
Members of Nomination Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BYkHITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BREE e 4
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANI4E &
Mr. Anish LALVANI

ﬁ% =] /L;\?E/_:E
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

FFELE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed and discussed the structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessed the independence of independent non-executive directors, and
approved the nomination of the retiring directors to seek for re-election at
the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (the “CG Committee”) was
established in 2012. As at the date of this report, the CG Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Michael
Tze Hau LEE, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, and Mr. Tak Shing CHOI (was appointed
committee member on 27 June 2019). Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE is the
Committee Chairman.

The CG Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
to the directors and employees of the Company and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in this
report.
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The CG Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended
31 March 2019. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

TEEREEENE

Members of CG Committee

B EERE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BYFITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

FIF 2 54
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

BREE K St 4
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISEAE
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PRES B
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

BITES

Executive Director

REFELE(RZ

ZEgWE)

—hFOA+IBER

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG (retired as Director and ceased to be

committee member on 19 April 2019)

REEE N THEEE 2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the CG Committee had
reviewed the corporate governance compliance status of the Company,
the board evaluation questionnaires completed by the directors, the
compliance with the Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors
and Relevant Employees and the training and continuous professional
development records of directors and senior management.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

External auditor’s remuneration for the financial year ended 31 March
2019 amounted to a total of HK$3,041,000, of which HK$2,502,000
was incurred for audit services, HK$329,000 for tax-related services
and HK$210,000 for other non-audit services.
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Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019 have been audited by the external auditor,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group which were prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditor about the responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 60 to 68 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group acknowledges certain aspects of risks are inherent in its
businesses and the markets it operates, and in pursuit of its corporate
objectives, undertakes to determine and monitor material risks in
order to enable sustainable growth and long term shareholder value.
The Group implements a comprehensive Risk Management and
Internal Control System (the “Control System”) which is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that significant risks
are identified and managed, transactions are executed in accordance
with management’s authorization, assets are protected, the financial
statements are accurate and reliable for publication, and the Group’s
activities are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The risk management and internal control process is embedded in the
Group’s daily businesses and operations, which involves understanding
the context, identifying potential exposures, assessing the likelihood
of consequences, determining the risk level, establishing appropriate
mitigating measures and followed by appropriate reporting.

[ Fex I EE gl DA R BRZ 1ERE B =
Understand |dentify Analyze Evaluate Mitigate/ Re :lr‘[
Context Risk Risk Impact Control P
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The Control System involves an organizational control structure which
emphasizes defined lines of duties and responsibilities, delegation of
authority and segregation of duties. At the top of the risk governance
structure sits the Board who oversees and is responsible for the Control
System and ensures its adequacy and effectiveness and acknowledge
that such system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Board delegates implementation responsibilities of the
Control System to the Risk Management Committee (the “RMC")
which comprises senior and experienced members of management.
The RMC supervises and facilitates the implementation of the Control
System with appropriate guidelines and tools, tracks material risks
and mitigating activities, and determines significant control failings
or weaknesses that have occurred. The execution of the Control
System is entrusted to the Business Units, and within the Business
Units, the Functional Groups. Each Business Unit is headed by a
General Manager and Financial Controller whose duties are to control
the activities of the Business Unit, ensure appropriate and adequate
operational policies, standards and procedures are in place and are
properly executed. The heads of the Functional Groups exercise risk
assessment in their daily decision making processes, escalate and
report material risks to the Business Unit heads. Through discussion
with the respective Business and Functional Unit heads, the RMC
summarizes a Risk Assessment Report for discussion with the Board.

The Group is able to call for assistance from outside professionals to
support difficult risk controlling matters.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit

The Board appoints the Audit Committee with clear terms of reference,
which comprises independent non-executive directors who are well-
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee oversees
and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control System.
It also identifies areas for improvement, reviews the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.
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The Audit Committee appoints the Group Internal Auditor (“GIA”),
whose roles and responsibilities are formalized under the Internal
Audit Charter adopted by the Audit Committee. Through ongoing
audit exercises, the GIA takes an independent role of monitoring the
Group’s compliance with established operating and financial policies,
standards and procedures, statutory and regulatory requirements, and
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control System and
to resolve material internal control defects on an annual basis. The
GIA plans the internal audit activities annually and submits an Internal
Audit Plan to the Audit Committee for review and approval. Internal
audit reports are presented to the Audit Committee and all proposed
corrective actions are followed up. The Company Secretary keeps full
minutes of all Audit Committee meetings. Drafts and final versions of
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all committee
members for their comment and record.

External Audit

The Board appoints the external auditor, Ernst & Young, to perform
independent statutory audits of the Group’s financial statements.
The external auditor attend meetings with the Audit Committee,
discuss and report the nature and scope of the audit, any significant
deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit of the
consolidated financial statements, and significant findings from the
audit.

2019 Assessment

The GIA has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Control
System during the year and a Risk Assessment Report was submitted
to the Audit Committee.
whistleblowing arrangement is in place such that employees can

In addition to the Control System, a

report their concerns or any misconduct, improper or fraudulent
activities committed by other personnel in the Group. All reported
whistleblowing matters were handled and investigated confidentially
and independently.

Based on the respective assessments, the Board acknowledges that
an adequate and effective risk management and internal control
process was in place for the year ended 31 March 2019. The
resources, qualifications, experience, training programs and budget of
the employees of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting and
internal audit functions were adequate. The Group has complied with
the risk management and internal control code provisions for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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Dividend Policy

The Board has established a Dividend Policy setting out the
principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply when
considering the declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits
as dividends to the shareholders of the Company. The payment of
dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda laws
and the Company’s Bye-Laws and any other applicable statutory and
regulatory restrictions, during declaration and payment of dividends to
shareholders of the Company.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company complies with the requirements of Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules.
The Company discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable after any inside information has come to
its knowledge unless the information falls within any of the “Safe
Harbours” as provided for in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Company ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Company believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Company would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Company is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact, to provide for equal, timely and effective access by the
public to the inside information disclosed.

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules, the Company
has taken various procedures and measures, including arousing the
awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside information with the
Company, sending blackout period and securities dealing restrictions
notification to the relevant directors and employees regularly, and
disseminating information to specified persons on a need-to-know
basis.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. All directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that board procedures, and applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary had complied with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year under review.

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid-up share capital of the Company as at the date of
the deposit which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company have the right to requisite the directors to convene a special
general meeting of the Company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the special general meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist and deposited at the registered office of the Company.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-half (50%)
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act,
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at general meetings of the Company or of at
least 100 shareholders in number of the Company, may put forward
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at a general meeting of the Company by sending the requisition
together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company not less than six weeks before
the general meeting.
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Pursuant to Bye-law 114 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, shareholder
may propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting
by lodging at the head office of the Company, a written notice of
nomination with the written consent of the nominated person of his/
her willingness to be elected, for a period of at least 7 days which
shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days before the date of such general meeting. Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are posted
on the website of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with
all shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information through publication of interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars to shareholders.
To enable the shareholders and investors have timely access to
updated information about the Group, the Company’s website
(www.chenhsong.com) contains important corporate information,
annual and interim reports, as well as announcements and circulars
issued by the Company.

The Company usually conducts briefing immediately following the
publication of the announcement of interim and final results. Face-
to-face meetings and conference calls with institutional investors and
investment analysts are conducted to make sure that shareholders and
potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s
business. To ensure all shareholders and potential investors receive
equal access to information at the same time, inside information is
released by publication of announcements pursuant to the Listing
Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to
attend the annual general meeting for which at least 20 clear business
days prior notice is given. The Board, the Chief Executive Officer
and Chairmen of the Board committees (or in their absence, other
members of the committee) are available to answer shareholders’
questions at the annual general meeting. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditor is requested to attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

In the case of any special general meeting to approve a connected
transaction which is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an effort
to attend the meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

Significant issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general
meeting, including re-election of individual directors. All resolutions
set out in the notice of general meeting put to the vote of the meeting
were by way of a poll. The results of the voting by poll were published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will review it when necessary to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to raise enquiries
through the Company’s Corporate Communications & Investor
Relations Department. The contact details are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the financial year ended 31 March 2019.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company present its report
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

Business Review

The business review of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the
Group’s business; a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year; an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business; an analysis of
the Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators;
a discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance;
a discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group; and an
account of the key relationships with its stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success
depends, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management’s
Discussion & Analysis” and “Financial Highlights” on pages 4 to
6, pages 7 to 17 and the inside front cover of this annual report,
respectively. The above sections form part of this report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 69 to 194 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0
cents per ordinary share to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 30 August 2019.
Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be payable
to shareholders on or about 13 September 2019. The proposed
final dividend together with the interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per
ordinary share paid on 11 January 2019, make a total dividend of
HK7.0 cents per ordinary share for the year.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 199 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements of the Group.

Issued Share Capital

There is no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during
the year.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme of the Company is set out in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Equity-linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$139,484,000, of which HK$25,221,000
has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made no charitable contributions (2018:
HK$130,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less

than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.
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Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existing during the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (retired as Chairman and
Executive Director on 23 April 2018, and was
appointed as Honorary Chairman on 23 April 2018)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer and
was appointed as Chairman on 23 April 2018) *
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (was appointed as
Deputy Chairman on 23 April 2018)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG # (retired as Executive
Director and ceased to be a member of CG Committee on
19 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN +*@#
Mr. Anish LALVAN| +*@#

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN +*@#
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE +*@#

* Members of the Audit Committee

Members of the Remuneration Committee

@ Members of the Nomination Committee

# Members of the Corporate Governance Committee

In accordance with Bye-law 189(viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Chi Kin CHIANG, Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG and Mr. Johnson
Chin Kwang TAN will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on

pages 18 to 22 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive directors of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company or an entity connected with a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force during the year and at
the time of approval of this report.

Changes in Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the changes in the information of
the directors of the Company subsequent to the date of the 2018/19
Interim Report of the Company are set out below:

(1) Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG retired as the Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 19 April 2019.

(2) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Cathy Pacific Airways
Limited with effect from 1 December 2018.

(3) Details of changes in the directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 9 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in directors’ information
since the date of the 2018/2019 Interim Report of the Company which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2019, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 630,531,600; and the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SF0O”)), as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares of the Company

EERDF
ERITEER
ZBHBET®

Approximate

REBR percentage of
2R the Company’s
EEfA S Interest in Fffzx issued ordinary
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares Notes shares
BB BEHEAA 5,000,000 - 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
Hi 399,641,620 (2) 63.38%
Other
FEEE EnEAA 2,078,000 - 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Beneficial owner
Hp 399,641,620 (2) 63.38%
Other
ERR EmnfBA 666,000 - 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Beneficial owner
BREE S EmEEA 484,000 - 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Beneficial owner
Anish LALVANI BB A 220,000 - 0.03%

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H

Beneficial owner
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(b) REBEZERBZERE (b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations
() REHEREERAR([BHERE]Z (i) Interests in ordinary shares of Chen Hsong Investments
LM Limited (“CH Investments”):
HRERE
2RITRG
ZHBABE DL
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
EEHSR 54 R 2 s (i shares of CH
Name of director Capacity Interest in shares Notes Investments
BN Hh 58,220,300 (2) 100.00%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Other
BER EHh 58,220,300 (2) 100.00%
Chi Kin CHIANG Other
(i) RRARZEFKBIEL T NEER (i) Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, both are
SRR EREA T EEEBE SRS directors of the Company, are deemed to be interested in the
2w shares of the following associated corporations:
LAEE LB
BrAER
BRITREZ
BRBE DL
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of
HEEEER RG2S Mt &t associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
Assetwise Holdings Limited 1% & @A (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
B (FBIREBR AR 2RI ERERE AR D (1), (3) 100.00%
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment 2 non-voting
Company Limited deferred shares
50 BEEBEARATF 2019 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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G AR A E
HEAER
2RITRBZ
BAOBD
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of

HEEEER Rz s et associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

EIEMEE R A PR A A 50,000,0008% (1), (3 100.00%
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, BREERERN
Limited 50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited 1A% 7] BE 51 iz 17 (1) 100.00%
1 redeemable share

CHI Dorset Square Limited 4,264,675/ & ik (1), (6) 100.00%
4,264,675 ordinary shares

Y BRA A 1 & AR (1), (3) 100.00%
Continuous Victory Limited 1 ordinary share

HMETAR A A M B AR (1), 4) 100.00%
Desee Limited 2 ordinary shares

EBABRAA 2R AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Desko Limited 2 ordinary shares

HEHERAR AR 1A% E 388 A% (1), 3) 100.00%
Elegant City Developments Limited 1 ordinary share

Elite Sino Investments Limited 2RE AR (1), (3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

BEREBR A A 2% E A (1), 3) 100.00%
Equaltex Investment Limited 2 ordinary shares

BXERAF 2R E AR (1), (4) 100.00%

Goman Limited

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H

2 ordinary shares
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B EE AR

Name of associated corporation

R 2

Interest in shares

B &

Notes

G A EE
BERER
ERITRBZ
BHABED
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued
shares of
associated
corporation

Gondmyne Limited

Granwich Limited

BB BB R A R AR
BERAA

Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services
Limited

Kadom Limited

EERBREERQA

KCI Investments Limited

SHERAA
Koyoki Limited

KEARAF]
Mikia Limited

R AR AA
Mogin Limited

Pacific Concept Global Limited

PRl NG
Parot Limited

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H

100,0000% & 38 I%
100,000 ordinary shares

1A% & A
1 ordinary share

52,570,0000% & 3@ A%
52,570,000 ordinary shares

2R E AR
2 ordinary shares

I &R
1 ordinary share

2R E AR
2 ordinary shares

2% E AR
2 ordinary shares

2% E AR
2 ordinary shares

6% & AR
6 ordinary shares

2R% B
2 ordinary shares

(1), (3)

(D), (3)

(D), (3)

(1), (3)

(1), (5)

(1), 4)

(1), (4)

(1), 4)

(1), (3)

(1), 4)

100.00%

100.00%

75.10%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

60.00%

100.00%
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G AR A E
HEAER
2RITRBZ
BAOBD
Approximate
percentage

of the relevant
class of issued

shares of

HEEEER Rz s et associated

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Perfect Choice Global Limited 1REER (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

EETARAA 2R E A (1), (4) 100.00%
Potachi Limited 2 ordinary shares

Pro-Team Pacific Limited 1R E R (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

MEERAA 2R E A (1), (4) 100.00%
Rikon Limited 2 ordinary shares

RERE R A A 2R E A (1), (4) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares

FaEBER AR 2R E AR (1), (4) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares

EEERAA 2R E A (1), (4) 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares

mElEEER AR 1H& & AR (1), (3) 100.00%

Value Creation Group Limited

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

1 ordinary share
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Notes:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 100% interest in CH
Investments. In turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited is
wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited is the trustee of a discretionary trust, namely The Chiang
Chen Industrial Charity Foundation (the “Charity Foundation”).
By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin
CHIANG are deemed to be interested in the relevant shares as
they respectively beneficially own 100% shares in Proficient City
Investments Limited and Peckham Ventures Limited, two of the
several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited, trustee of the Charity Foundation, which holds 100%
indirect interest in CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG are deemed to be
interested in the relevant shares as they respectively beneficially
own 100% shares in Proficient City Investments Limited
and Peckham Ventures Limited, two of the several eligible
beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

Such interests are held by CH Investments.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Assetwise Holdings Limited.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Perfect Choice Global Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions

in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under

Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

No share options were granted to or exercised by the directors or chief
executive of the Company during the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the directors, chief executive or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2019, none of the executive directors had any interest
in a business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2019, so far as was known to the directors and
chief executive of the Company, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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REQATRGDZHE Long positions in shares of the Company
P NN
BRITEER
ZBAEDL
Approximate
percentage of
TERRE the Company’s
BREREREHH 54 Number of Misx  issued ordinary
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares Notes shares
EIERE EmiEA A 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
CH Investments Beneficial owner
BE EnEAA 3,980,000 (3) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Beneficial owner
PREFE KA 399,641,620 (1), (2), (3) 63.38%
Founder of
discretionary trust
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited R HEE 2 s 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
Interest of controlled
corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited FEEA 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
Trustee
BER EmEA A 5,000,000 - 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
EAb 399,641,620 (4) 63.38%
Other
Proficient City Investments Limited A HEE 2 s 399,641,620 (4) 63.38%
Interest of controlled
corporation
BRER EmEA A 2,078,000 - 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Beneficial owner
EAb 399,641,620 (4) 63.38%
Other

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H
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LERNE|
ERTERR
ZHABEIL

Approximate
percentage of

ZERBE the Company’s
BEREBHAR 5 Number of Miz¥ issued ordinary
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares Notes shares
Peckham Ventures Limited REAEGDER 2 s 399,641,620 (4) 63.38%
Interest of controlled
corporation
MEEEREEER(AEB)ARAR wEKIE 50,012,000 (5) 7.93%
Schroder Investment Management Investment manager
(Hong Kong) Limited
Schroders Plc R HEE 2 50,012,000 (5) 7.93%
Interest of controlled
corporation
David Michael WEBB BEREAA 13,303,000 - 2.11%
Beneficial owner
N | D B s 24,605,000 (6) 3.90%

Interest of controlled
corporation

it Notes:

(1) B HERE S 2 B —HID - @ Cititrust (1) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.

(Bahamas) Limited BEZE & 257 A * K Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant
WRIERBBAROEEE R MZEABENR shares by virtue of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation, and the
19 7535 3B H AT £ §ll 2 7% @ Chiangs’ Industrial relevant shares are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’
Holdings Limited £ EH# 1% & #55 100% # % i Industrial Holdings Limited which holds 100% interest in CH Investments.
A o

(2) WBEBEALBEED  BREEELIESE (2) By virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the
SIHERTA  WEEELHEUEERIER relevant shares as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and he may
EHS VKA MERIERERBIRGIZARE be regarded as the founder of the Charity Foundation.

(3) BRELTABEEEL S - BB ALE  (3) Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the
EIEG  BEREL TR BRERS SN MEEE capacity of interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant
REEE LA ARG EE#ER - shares held by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.
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4 WHEBRBEEMBFEZA —#®RKRD - AR
Proficient City Investments Limited &z Peckham
Ventures Limited I R R EE S LN A ER
RHAZEFRMA  BMEREREBRD
BAE® D - M &2 £ A Proficient City
Investments Limited M — B2 A A R EEHE
% 4 A Peckham Ventures Limited M — & 25 ¥
BA-

(5) #2#%Schroders Plci® —ZE— N\E+ = AN
AERCZESEERSE  HWIIHGESEKREE
B(HEB)ERQABMBZE—IRG - BB
Schroders Plc ARG EIREETIE(BB)ERA
RIZBRREZBEAN  BEGRIEREERDE
B -

(6) 1R David Michael WEBBE AR —ZZF — )\ &
ANA—HEXZHEEERE  ZERMHA
Preferable Situation Assets Limitedi%4& * 22
&) fDavid Michael WEBB4E 4 100% 2 4l

B EXFREREEN  RZTE-NF=A=+—
B SEEREMATEERNRAF 2Rk
BRI 2 s BOX B A e 8k MR IR 8 75 I HA
B IEPIFE3I36IFARRIFEF 2 ELCTA

BAEALXRS
AEBERRBERZ 5 RUBELBEA
TIZALATETRS - FAEREBRNTB
R MIE36 -

MORZHEX LRI THFERER
% > Bl e

AEER—ERT - BEEABM ORI
BRAR ([E2FRI]) BERME - LUK
BEE  WEXZTA/AEREZFHERER
SHERETRE 2 —RAEEEET - ZEX
HRTAREMRRKFNRS - WHHBIRLL
- FEEHMAEER EMARAFI4ATH
BERUE ©

BBARLNBEEREE(BORARFZE
) EREMA-BITBHAL - A HKEH
EREXARAFKRRAGHEBI0O% ZERE
- ANEBREERRAREEFAERRY
ZEREBANRER - FTIA - BERYIBSE /AR
SEZEERTF WA LETRAEIAAFRT A
NEIZBENTL ~
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(4) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Proficient City Investments Limited and Peckham Ventures Limited are
deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by virtue of being two of the
several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation and Ms. Lai Yuen
CHIANG is the sole beneficial shareholder of Proficient City Investments
Limited and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG is the sole beneficial shareholder of
Peckham Ventures Limited.

(5) Based on the notice of disclosure of interests of Schroders Plc filed on
4 December 2018, this represents the same parcel of shares held by
Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited. Schroders Plc
is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by virtue of being the
ultimate beneficial owner of Schroder Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited.

(6) Based on the notice of disclosure of interests of Mr. David Michael WEBB
filed on 1 June 2018, these shares are held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. David Michael WEBB.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no other persons were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles. Details are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group purchased raw materials and received rental income from
a related company, Zhen Jian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (“CC-SZ"). These transactions were also continuing connected
transactions of the Group, which were on normal commercial terms
mutually agreed by the Group and CC-SZ. They were de minimus
transactions and fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (each being a director
of the Company), together with parties acting in concert with them,
control the exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general
meetings of Chen Chien Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds the
entire equity interest of CC-SZ, CC-SZ is therefore a related company
of the Group and also a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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EERBEE
Report of the Directors

Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
sufficient amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares during the year and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in
line with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate. The Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for the remuneration of
the directors who are also senior management of the Group, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 23 to 44 of this
annual report.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen
Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 194, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in

that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREETHENTEHHN

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and finance lease receivables

JEH B 5 5 50 A R S K B T B A 300 B0 (B A

As at 31 March 2019, after netting off with an aggregate
impairment provision of HK$81,999,000, the total
net carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables
and finance lease receivables was HK$674,615,000.
Significant judgements and estimates are applied by
management, based on the lifetime expected credit loss
approach, in assessing whether the trade receivables
and finance lease receivables are recoverable and
if impairment provision is required. Management
considers various factors, including the ageing of
the trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
historical collection patterns, existence of any disputes,
trading history with each customer, prevailing and
expected future market conditions and other available
information concerning the creditworthiness of
customers.

Related disclosures about trade receivables and finance
lease receivables are included in notes 4, 20 and 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-NF=A=1t—H BXENEKESERX
Ko e it A FH & BR SRS HNBR B #6 81,999,000 7T #Y Rl {5 ¢
1&g - #IFFRBH674,615,0007T - BEEEKR 2 HTE
HEE BB ERE A AT AT A ERE SRR
AL EREBERERREL AT WE SR EREEE R
- -EEEZERRERBRUEZRAMERRERE
R R - MEERRE - FRFEME - BREEE
FHEZLE - BEREMARRT SRR REMERE
FPEEEEMEM -

BAREWE SRR L ENREEERROBESER -
7

B
RERA M IEHRERMEES - 20822 -

Qur audit procedures included evaluating
management’s assessment methodology, and the inputs
and assumptions applied by management in performing
the impairment assessment by checking the ageing
of trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
the credit terms granted by the Group, historical
collection patterns and post year-end settlements
received from selected samples of customers. In
addition, we inspected the published economic indices
that management applied in their assessment of the
impairment provision of trade receivables and finance
lease receivables.

BB EFBRFGERENNGIE  UESB
EHBATFRKRE SRR LERRERERINER
i BEREGETZEEY  BEERTHEARIRE
RERIBN - A EEBEETREN ERERANE
BB - tbsh - BPIRMHERERARFHERE S
R M ERERERERTERBNE A EHEER -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BRENERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEAEE RN AELE N

Assessment of inventory provision

TFER BT

As at 31 March 2019, the net carrying amount of
the Group’s inventories was HK$552,996,000. The
assessment of inventory provision is based on the
estimated net realisable value of inventories, which
requires significant management judgement and
estimates. Management considers various factors,
including the ageing of the inventories, historical sales
patterns, post year-end sales and selling prices of
inventories, market demand, technological changes and
the Group’s future plan of usage or sale.

Related disclosures about inventories are included in
notes 4 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-NF=ZA=1T—08  BEEENGFEEFHAKL
#552,996,0007T - FEBEEHNFEDERFEMMGE
AERFEET  UFEEBIELERHE KA - &
BEEZRAEBRFENER  BEHECE - BIRR
FEHERAMEE MEFER  RMEENAR BE
BRKRIFEREAKHEETE -

FRFENRESER  HRNGAMBHRRMT4RIO-

Our audit procedures included evaluating
management’s assessment methodology, and the
inputs and assumptions applied by management in
the assessment of the inventory provision by checking
the ageing, the post year-end usage and sale and the
selling prices, of selected samples of inventories, and
assessing management’s expected future demand and
usage of inventories with reference to historical usage
and/or sales patterns, and sales orders received by the
Group.

BB RF R ETIEEREOFESE  BBEN
BATRNEE  BREOERREEEIARER
SELNVEEBA, GE 2 BB E TE TR
BURKEERRRERNER - LRI RS
TERBET R AN BB -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REEEBH PR NAEY 0

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB e B E RS

The goodwill of the Group amounted to HK$94,923,000
as at 31 March 2019. The Group performs an
impairment test for goodwill acquired in business
combinations on an annual basis. Management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill involves estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill is allocated. The assessment process
involved management’s significant judgement and
estimates, including the estimation of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and the
use of other assumptions that are sensitive to expected
future market or economic conditions and the cash-
generating unit’s performance in the foreseeable future,
such as the discount rate and growth rate.

Related disclosures about goodwill are included in
notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZB-NAF=A=+—H EEENHE/BE
94,923,000t - EXEREBEHABHORESSF
EITRENR - EEENAEREMGERYECEIE
BEZREELEM 2EREBELAR - ZAEFE
BEEELBEAHE MG BREEFREREELEM
ZEMAKRBZRE - RERAEIEHH IS LB IIA
REREELEMNA RARRORBHE 2 EMBERE
o FIRRRERE -

FRRENRBESER SRR MBHRMTAR1T -

Qur audit procedures included evaluating
management’'s methodologies and key assumptions
used in the discounted cash flow projections, in
particular those relating to the growth rate and discount
rate with the assistance of our valuation experts, and
evaluating management’s assessment on the sensitivity
analysis about the key assumptions and cash flow
projections.

B ERFeRTEREEEREHRRSREET
FHEMR 2 AR EBRER - AEDRANGETHKEIE
RRRFREFEMORBETE - UAREEEERE
ERRLIAMAKA S RE < GURMEFHHETTRIE -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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B EEEEERARINVRKRER To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(RERZAME T2 HRLA]) (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

R EH oA BRERIENSE AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
() CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o FEZEE=MRASTBERMNBEENRIES o  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
@ {HEtMEBREENS B - reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o WEERARBEKEGTAR \‘A%"I‘E{/ﬁ e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going

Lt o BIEFTENMESRE BT concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
EEFHHEEENEREENERNTREE obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
- WmelsEERY SEEMNFERLE or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
BENEAERERE WMREMRBATEE ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
AKITETH AR EEZEEIREES material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
TE EHERAEIERAY BRI BB our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
c BREBMMBEENRE - BIFMES R financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
ﬁ#ﬂﬁ BER - RIS ERN modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
BhERes B IFFTEVSEETRE - AW & evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
REIB N IE R A] RE B EL E;"‘%Kﬁﬁ%% future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
L o continue as a going concern.

o IEBHEAMBHERNBESN R - 451#% o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

MAR > BIEEE  UARGATBESRERL consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
BRERMZSMEIE o and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Ft BEBRNEENEMREEBHNFEZE e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the

R R  BEMNETEE  WEHES financial information of the entities or business activities within
EHmRERER - BRMAE E5£EHE the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
HMyAHE C EBMEHT o RMARIER statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
EEEHEMT - performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

BEMEBIFI  BfIEEEZEZESEB 7512l We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
HIEETEE - % HE - EAEEBIAL - 8 matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
R PIEET PR H RSB A = AR audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
BA o that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kwong Ka Yan.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 March 2019

BE_T-NAF=A=+—RHLFE

(EMTFoT) (HK$’000) K15t Notes 2019 2018
Uy &5 REVENUE 6 1,635,938 1,667,879
SHE RN Cost of sales (1,282,334)  (1,244,913)
E7 Gross profit 353,604 422 966
E b U A R Uk 55 558 Other income and gains, net 140,019 65,203
HERDHEY H Selling and distribution expenses (178,032) (183,798)
T HE Administrative expenses (122,738) (127,129)
H bR & & 1R %R Other operating expenses, net (67,935) (50,217)
LR N Finance costs 8 (1,954) (1,248)
FE(EHEE A A Share of profits less losses

i KR B 1E of associates 1,043 3,366
BB AR R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 124,007 129,143
5z Income tax expense 11 (34,778) (26,312)
REEER PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 89,229 102,831
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
AN FIRERIEEE A Equity holders of the Company 90,279 101,877
IRV AR = Non-controlling interests (1,050) 954

89,229 102,831

NI EARNINGS PER SHARE

BEAERL ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

BRER HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
EARCGENM) Basic (HK cents) 14.3 16.2
BgEN) Diluted (HK cents) 14.3 16.2

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH
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BE_ZT-NAF=A=+—-RHLFE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2019

(EEFor) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
E BT PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 89,229 102,831
Hip 2wz () OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
ATRE 14 BfE1E 7 Other comprehensive income/(expenses) that
SHEERGRZ may be reclassified to the income statement in
Em2Ehias (4 - subsequent periods:
ME N ZE%R Exchange differences:
BEGINETS Exchange differences on translation of
fE 5 =% foreign operations (158,374) 229,570
FE(REE & A a H A Share of other comprehensive income/
2HERE () (expenses) of associates (2,459) 3,339
A EL & B & Net other comprehensive income/(expenses)
DHEEWFRZEM that may be reclassified to the income
FEMEE () F58E statement in subsequent periods (160,833) 232,909
TERAEARE Other comprehensive income that will not
B EE N m R be reclassified to the income statement in
HE2Ehas - subsequent periods:
TRHEMNETZ Actuarial gains on defined benefit
EE U obligations 1,701 203
YIEEN 2 W (T iE14) Gain on property revaluation (note 14) 3,409 -
iEfi & Income tax effect (852) -
2,557 -
R EGBREN S Net other comprehensive income that will not
ElmEk 2 HAty be reclassified to the income statement in
2EKEFEE subsequent periods 4,258 203
AEEHMEZE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
W (ZH) - H1RBE FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (156,575) 233,112
REFHDE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
Wz (ZH) FOR THE YEAR (67,346) 335,943
BER: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RAFIERFFAA Equity holders of the Company (65,452) 333,391
FEIEAR Non-controlling interests (1,894) 2,552
(67,346) 335,943
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2019

(EMTFoT) (HK$’000) K15t Notes 2019 2018
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BENEE Property, plant and equipment 14 614,628 703,147
WEME Investment properties 15 372,007 320,736
AN T AER Prepaid land lease payments 16 34,206 37,330
R Goodwill 17 94,923 94,923
REE AR 2 ®E Investments in associates 18 31,211 32,627
EEBRBEEE Deferred tax assets 29 38,549 38,170
HBEWE  BEX Deposits for purchases of items of

BYEHEA property, plant and equipment 8,135 7,846
EUE SR Trade receivables 20 30,779 22,588
R R EHE R Finance lease receivables 22 4,215 2,591
EIIRITIE R Pledged bank deposits 23 21 1,242
IERBE E AT Total non-current assets 1,228,674 1,261,200
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 19 552,996 802,495
FEUE 5 N EIRIRR Trade and bills receivables 20 884,319 844,181
A& - ERRER Deposits, prepayments and

H b AR FX other receivables 21 60,060 96,862
R EhE T E R Finance lease receivables 22 37,816 33,643
A ERITFER Pledged bank deposits 23 20,063 45,755
WENIRTTER Cash and bank balances 24 667,817 611,564
mEEEE Total current assets 2,223,071 2,434,500
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FENE 5 NEEIRN Trade and bills payables 25 299,340 475,857
E bR Other payables, accruals and

B ELREYABE contract liabilities 26 202,480 224,331
STEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 73,893 24,770
FESRITE Tax payable 34,802 34,000
mENBERET Total current liabilities 610,515 758,958
RBEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,612,556 1,675,542
EEAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS

REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,841,230 2,936,742

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

NZZE-hF=A=+—H As at 31 March 2019
CEMTFoT) (HK$°000) H1zE Notes 2019 2018
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEM BRI Other payables and

FEztaE accruals 26 11,114 2,258
THEEMET Defined benefit obligations 28 8,173 12,251
FEERIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 55,867 39,253
EmEBEES Total non-current liabilities 75,154 53,762
BEFE NET ASSETS 2,766,076 2,882,980
= EQUITY
EATEREEA Equity attributable to equity holders

GRS of the Company
BT Issued share capital 30 63,053 63,053
G Reserves 32 2,688,879 2,804,774

2,751,932 2,867,827

R ER Non-controlling interests 14,144 15,153
ST TOTAL EQUITY 2,766,076 2,882,980

%t Lai Yuen CHIANG
FEFLEEEE Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

#EE Chi Kin CHIANG
B3 /E Deputy Chairman
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2019

2019
KARBHEFEE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRI B3 e (]
BA& BER 1
Issued Share Capital BRRE TERE ]
k3 share premium  redemption Capital Statutory General

(BEFT) (HK$'000) Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve
RZE-\ELA-H At 1 April 2018 63,053 509,580 295 53,131 145,850 2,351
KEEEH/ (BE) Profit/(loss) for the year - - - _ _ B
FEEEMEE Other comprehensive income/

Wi/ (i) - (expenses) for the year:

ERES Exchange differences - _ _ _ _ _

TRENERL Actuarial gains on defined

BEYE benefit obligations 28 - - - - _ _
MEER NS Gain on property revaluation,
Bl net of tax ! - - - - - -

AEEREA Total comprehensive income/

Wi/ (ZH) (expenses) for the year - - - - - _
—HAREAR Capital contribution by

FERRE non-controlling shareholders

BARA of a subsidiary - - - - - -
REBFER Transfer from retained profits - - - 127 286 -
BE-_Z-)\F Final dividend

ZA=+-AL for the year ended

FEZRERE 31 March 2018 12 - - - - - -
RERE Interim dividend 12 - - - - - -
RZZE-NFE=A=1+—H At31 March 2019 63,053 509,580* 295* 5H3,258* 146,136* 2,351*

7] 2019 F#

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019 73

R



SBEREZRDHER 2 Consolidated Statement of Changes in EQuity (continuea)

HE-_Z-AWF=ZA=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2019
2019
RAREHREE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEBfR EigE FER
1 1 ER
Asset Exchange REEF Non- ERms
M#  revaluation  fluctuation Retained @t controlling Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RZZ-\ELA—H At 1 April 2018 78,674 356,225 1,608,668 2,867,827 15153 2,882,980
REEER/(BB)  Proftiloss) for the year - - 0219 90,279 (L050) 89,229
TEEEB2ZE Other comprehensive income/
g/ (i) - (expenses) for the year:
EXES Exchange differences - (159,989) - (159,989) (844)  (160,833)
TRENERL Actuarial gains on defined
BEYE benefit obligations 28 - - 1,701 1,701 - 1,701
U E Ll e Gain on property revaluation,
Mk net of tax 14 2,557 - - 2,557 - 2,557
FEREB2E Total comprehensive income/
Wiz /(%) (expenses) for the year 2557 (159.989) 91980  (65452) (1894)  (67,346)
—RHBAR Capital contribution by
FERRE non-controlling shareholders
ERBA of a subsidiary - - - - 885 885
REGHER Transfer from retained profits - - (413) - - _
BE_Z-)\F Final dividend
ZA=+-AL for the year ended
EEZRERE 31 March 2018 12 - - @R (L) - G615
PHRE Interim dividend 12 - - (18916)  (18916) - (18916)
RZE-nE=FA=+—H At31 March 2019 81,231* 196,236*  1,699,792* 2,751,932 14144 2,766,076
74 BEEBEABRAT 2019 FH CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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HE_Z-hWhF=ZA=+—RHILFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in EQuity (continuea)
Year ended 31 March 2019

2018
KARBHEFEE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRI ki e (]
A RER 1
Issued Share Capital BEXRE EEsE — e
k3 share premium  redemption Capital Statutory General

(BEFT) (HK$'000) Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve
RZE—+FNA—-H At 1 April 2017 63,053 509,580 295 53,035 145,310 2,351
KEERF Profit for the year _ _ _ _ ~ ~
AEEEMEE Other comprehensive income

Wi for the year:

ERZER Exchange differences - - - - _ _

TRENERL Actuarial gains on defined

rEkE benefit obligations 28 - - - - _ _

FEEBEME Total comprehensive income

g for the year - - - - _ _
REBEHER Transfer from retained profits - - - 96 540 -
BE-Z—+% Final dividend

ZA=t-HBit for the year ended

FEZREKRE 31 March 2017 12 - - - - - -
BE_Z—+F Special final dividend

ZA=+-Aik for the year ended

EEZEAIRERE 31 March 2017 12 - - - - _ _
HERE Interim dividend 12 - - - - - -
R=E-\E=F=+—H At31 March 2018 63,053 509,580* 295* h3,131* 145,850* 2,351*

* ZERBREREGAMBMRARAZEERE 7
5 A7512,688,879,0007T( —F— )\ F : B
2,804,774,0007T) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,688,879,000 (2018: HK$2,804,774,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position
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3 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
BE-FT-AF=A=—BLFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

76

2018
RAREHREE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEBfR EigE FER
1 1 ER
Asset Exchange REEF Non- A
Vi3 revaluation  fluctuation Retained @t controlling Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RZE—+4MA—-H At 1 April 2017 78,674 124914 1612711 2,589,923 12,601 2,602,524
REERF Profit for the year - - 101,877 101,877 954 102,831
TEEEB2ZE Other comprehensive income
Wi for the year
EHE% Exchange differences - 231311 - 231311 1,598 232,909
TRENERL Actuarial gains on defined
BEkE benefit obligations 28 - - 203 203 - 203
FEEREE Total comprehensive income
W& for the year - 231311 102,080 333,391 2,552 335,943
REENEH Transfer from retained profits - - (636) - - -
BHE_Z—1F Final dividend
“A=+-A1k for the year ended
FEZRERE 31 March 2017 12 - - (16,394) (16,394) - (16,394)
BE_F—+F Special final dividend
“A=+-A1k for the year ended
ERZRAIRBRSE 31 March 2017 12 - - (20,177) (20,177) - (20,177)
PHRE Interim dividend 2 - - (18916) (18916) - (18916)
WZE-\F=A=+—H At31 March 2018 78,674* 356,225* 1,608,668 2,867,827 15153 2,882,980

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H
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HE_Z-NF=A=1T—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March 2019

GEBFor) (HK$'000) K12 Notes 2019 2018
REXK RS CASH FLOWS FROM
RE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR A58 A1 g A Profit before tax 124,007 129,143
FHEE Adjustments for:
A KA Finance costs 8 1,954 1,248
GBS N B 7l Share of profits less losses of
JRETE associates (1,043) (3,366)
FBUA Interest income 7 (8,865) (9,996)
BEREF B UA Finance lease interest income 7 (2,004) (2,449)
e Depreciation 7 57,033 53,951
A LA E K Amortization of prepaid land lease
k£ payments 7 1,387 1,383
HEWE BEN Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of
Rz k1B, (ES) property, plant and equipment 7 (513) 27
VI RS R Write-off of items of property,
25k plant and equipment 7 770 2,248
SERAaE TS Write-off of aged liabilities 7 (8,326) (354)
"EMEZ NFE Fair value gains on investment
e properties 7 (64,119) (8,512)
FERE(BERE) Provision/(write-back of provision)
FFE for inventories, net 7 976 (4,415)
FEURE SR FURE, Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
CREREERE ) FEE of trade receivables, net 7 4,720 (1,583)
JEW R E R EBRFORE, Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
CRE#RE [ ) 558 of finance lease receivables, net 7 (715) 1,050
Hth fE U BR ZURE, Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
CRER D) F5E of other receivables, net 7 329 (1,934)
105,591 156,441
HFERD,/(Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 204,059 (307,500)
FEUE 5 & ZIRBR UL N Increase in trade and bills receivables (91,117) (61,808)
el R E SRR Decrease/(increase) in finance
(3&40) lease receivables (6,746) 13,403
Al A RIEREAM Decrease/(increase) in deposits,
FEURRE ORI (3 ) prepayments and other receivables 32,448 (54,193)
ENESREEETIEM - Increase/(decrease) in trade and
Cr) bills payables (152,410) 92,459
HiENER - EEtABEKR  Increase/(decrease) in other payables,
aWaEEmn Opd) accruals and contract liabilities (140) 20,181
TEREEME TR Decrease in defined benefit obligations (1,791) (9,019)
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HE-F-AFZA=T—BILFR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continuea)

Year ended 31 March 2019

(GE#For) (HK$°000) 7t Notes 2019 2018
KEELE/ ()28 s Cash generated from/(used in) operations 89,894 (150,036)
ERHE Interest paid (1,954) (1,248)
ERBmERERN L Finance lease interest received 2,004 2,449
REOBFBFER Hong Kong profits tax refunded 20 -
R OEFINRIE Overseas taxes refunded 1,037 874
ERIEHNIIR Overseas taxes paid (17,946) (24,937)
TEER2He Net cash flows from/(used in)

A G F58 operating activities 73,055 (172,898)
REXB RS CASH FLOWS FROM

RE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEME  BWE Purchases of items of property,

B plant and equipment 33(a) (13,721) (57,462)
NEREWE Additions to investment properties 15 - (224)
HEME  BENERE Proceeds from disposal of items

EREE e of property, plant and equipment 592 253
2R E Interest received 8,865 9,996
BEME BE Increase in deposits for purchases

B-HES of items of property, plant

il and equipment 33(a) (4,592) (7,846)
P F R BE B FR HR W P Decrease in bank deposits with

BE=EAZ original maturity of more than

RITFFUR D three months when acquired - 91,742
R T FIUR D Decrease in pledged bank deposits 23,817 16,398
WEEB 2R RA R Net cash flows from investing activities 14,961 52,857
MEXB RS CASH FLOWS FROM

RE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HERITER New bank loans 50,000 53,792
BEIRITER Repayment of bank loans - (103,792)
ERARE Dividends paid (50,443) (55,487)
L LEENEIE =203 & Capital contribution by non-controlling

BN shareholders of a subsidiary 885 -
MEXEB RS Net cash flows from/(used in)

WA O ) F588 financing activities 442 (105,487)
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BE-T-NF=AS+—HILEE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continuea)

Year ended 31 March 2019

(EMTFoT) (HK$’000) K12 Notes 2019 2018
ReRESEEBYZ NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN

#in (Rd)FE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 88,458 (225,528)
FY2BE Cash and cash equivalents

KIS EY at beginning of year 611,564 769,722
[EREF & Effect of foreign exchange rate

FEE changes, net (32,205) 67,370
FRZEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

HEZEY AT END OF YEAR 667,817 611,564
HENREZEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

EFEZDMm CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RE RIRITHET Cash and bank balances 24 648,255 541,313
AT SR B B SR E i B Bank deposits with original maturity of

TR=M@AZHRITER less than three months when acquired 24 19,562 70,251

667,817 611,564
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2019

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai
Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the
manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and
related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated
in the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH
Investments”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the
Company’s immediate holding company.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 195
to 198.

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties which
have been measured at fair value. Defined benefit obligations
are measured using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method as further explained in note 3 to the financial statements.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000)
except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2019

21 RBEEE) 2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

BAEVBHRERBEARAREWE QA
(2 HRBAIAERDEE-_ZS—NF=
A=+—BLEFEZMBEREK - WEBAR]
ARANREEIEZEEFNER(RELS
BHEE) EAEEHSEREHRE
5892 B Bl dof FE B b ok = B 1 F LA 2 B
FRHBEHROEN(NAEEER T
WBEENAZEBREHKEEETBNT
TERN)) B2 LRI - BNEVSEEHIRE -

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group’’) for the year ended 31 March 2019. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

MANBEEEEREE DI REHER K When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
ZEISESFEUIRER - B AREER LG of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers

HELHAUREHROENR
DHEEERBR B

eEE—

(a) EIEEHREMBZEHAANENL
B

(b) EtbAE L HEFTEAMER

(c) NEEREERNBERERE

MEBARMEREREAEAQAR —BND

FTCR AR R REARE - B AREE

BASEESEFEZBEREAR B
EERFIERIEZBRIE -

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H

all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated

from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2019

2.1 RBEEZ) 2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the income statement or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

228 BRERREED
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

BB RELER]
297 (1BA]) KRG ESZ IR E2 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
SR E of Share-based Payment
Transactions
A% (153T) JEF BB BHEER Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
FEoR LT AEZR Instruments with HKFRS 4
BB B ER Insurance Contracts
FAFRE AL
E95 SHTA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
155 FKEEFE M HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
F15%(155]) BB IR 2ER) Amendments to HKFRS 15  Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
EIsHKEEF from Contracts with Customers
BRIz BF

A G ER KE Y7 2R Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
FA05K (183])

B (BEBRMERE ESZREMEE HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
REZE®Y) Advance Consideration
—REFR22%

—E-ER BB L AR Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
ZENFHH BIRREAG 2014-2016 Cycle HKAS 28
ZF A HERIE285RIEET

BRI XAt B A B M RS ERF 95
REBVBGHREEFISHEAZEIN K
AT A AT RIS e F RS R
WEEKRERM IR E
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Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

228 BRRRESEH (#)

(a) BEVBREENEI®RF T AR (a) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
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Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting.

The Group has chosen to recognize any transition adjustments
against opening balances in equity at 1 April 2018. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 39. The Group has performed
an assessment of the impact of adoption of HKFRS 9. The
impacts related to the classification and measurement and
the impairment requirements are summarized as follows:

Classification and measurement

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has had no significant impact on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
liabilities. Management has assessed which business models
apply to the financial assets held by the Group and has
classified the financial assets as debt instruments at amortised
cost under HKFRS 9, which were previously classified as
loans and receivables under HKAS 39. The carrying amounts
of all financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 April 2018
have not been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)
Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortized cost that are not accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded
based on an expected credit loss (“ECL") model either on a
twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group has applied
the simplified approach and recorded lifetime expected losses
that are estimated based on the present values of all cash
shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade receivables
and finance lease receivables. Furthermore, the Group has
applied the general approach and recorded twelve-month
expected credit losses that are estimated based on the
possible default events on its other financial assets within the
next twelve months. The Group concluded that HKFRS 9 has
had no significant impact on the impairment assessment of
its financial assets and no transition adjustment against the
opening balance in equity at 1 April 2018 was made.

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognizing revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The disclosures are
included in notes 6 and 26 to the financial statements. As a
result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed
the accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition in
note 3 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of
initial application or only to contracts that are not completed
at this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard
to contracts that are not completed as at 1 April 2018. The
cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 15
was recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits as at 1 April 2018. Therefore, the comparative
information was not restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 18 and related interpretations. The Group
concluded that other than more presentation and disclosure
requirements such as the disclosure of disaggregated revenue
information and the reclassification of contract liabilities from
other payables, there is no change in the timing of revenue
recognition, i.e. the Group continues to recognize revenue
at a point in time when the goods are delivered. As such, no
adjustment was required to the Group’s retained profits as at
1 April 2018.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration from the customer in advance. In this
regard, cash or bank acceptance notes collected from certain
customers before product delivery which were recognized as
receipt in advance before 1 April 2018, have been recognized
as contract liabilities since 1 April 2018. Therefore, upon
adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified HK$71,590,000
from other payables to contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018
in relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance as at 1 April 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Generally, the Group’s trading terms with its customers
are either cash on delivery, bank bills or on credit. For
contracts with certain customers, the Group allows the
customers to settle the trade receivables by installments
with credit periods of 12 months to 24 months in general
(the “Installment Contracts”). Those trade receivables are
interest-bearing. The Group recognizes the entire contract
amount as revenue when significant risks and rewards and
control of the plastic injection moulding machines and related
products are transferred to customers, generally upon delivery
of the goods. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
had to determine whether there is a significant financing
component in contracts with customers. For the Installment
Contracts, the Group concluded that they contain a financing
component because of the length of time between when the
customers pay for the goods and when the Group transfers
goods to the customers, as well as the prevailing interest
rates in the market. The transaction price for those contracts
is determined by discounting the amount of promised
consideration using the appropriate discount rate. The Group
has concluded that the adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no
significant impact on the financial performance of the Group.

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
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23CEMEREMNE B HFHREZAER 2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

(#) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

ERYMEREER KREZHABL Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
B0 LEE NN 1)) and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
SETERIE 285 BELESTE Associate or Joint Venture?

(2011)({&&T)

BB EREER
E165% HE! HKFRS 16 Leases!
BE17% Rg &4 HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
EEeFEA
E15 R ESH BAMTEE? Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?
(&77) and HKAS 8
F19%:(1&z3]) FEINEET - A Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
A1 Settlement!
F28%(157T) REELFIRAEE Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests In Associates
RalZ REAR &1 and Joint Ventures!
EB (BB BWmE A EZR HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
REZEY) T Treatments!
—RRE23R
—E-—AFZE BAUTSIREERNE3R - Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3,
—E—+FHH BAMBRELL 2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
ZFRHE F115% - BB E; HKAS 23!
ERIFI2REBEG
FTERIE 23508 5]
1 RIZE—hF—A—HIUNERBRZFE 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
AR AR
2 RIZZEZZEF-—A—HRKUNERBZEE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
HARS A K
3 RZE-—F—F—BHNERRZEE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
AR A
4 RETEABIESBE - BREEA 4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
EEETEARTSENE SRS E Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
RIEE— P EREN T - applicable to the Group is described below.
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23C A EBEREVRMNE BV KHRELAR 2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class
of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Group plans
to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognize
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 April 2019 and will not
restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognized in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial application.
The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard
on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as
of the date of initial application. During 2019, the Group has
performed an assessment on the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16.
As disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, at 31 March
2019, the Group had future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$4,942,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts
included therein will be recognized as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 with a corresponding adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of the other aforementioned new and revised HKFRSs
upon initial application but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant impact
on its financial performance and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognizes
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognized in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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3. FEEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum

WEEEFEZATE  BIREFEE of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value

CEHeNRSRERAEEESR 2L of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,

= recognized in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.

VIAMERE - BRI AR 25T RE B8 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
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accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergy of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent

period.
EEESEERSEAEM(SIREEE Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
BAAER) R EZEMN 2 XD ET - group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within

A|RE T M E X 2 WSk B8R « B
EEBKEBz BB EEREBZER
BN - EER THEZEEBULEE
BRRBZESCELEN B HLEREA
BB ERTE -

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

93



PR MR @)

—E-NAF=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2019

94

AEERSREMRFEREDE - 2F
ERANGERRNEMS2REZAFR
SPRALEEEMKRIAEZE BN
2B - AFEFEDERBRRLESR
ESERABIRINEEHRBEITE
MIHEL - MW BT EMS - AIRNEE
SBBEIRENZMHELE - TBHHKA
NS ARAEEIEAZTE - BEX
BEZAVENERMS2EEGRITRE
REEHENSHEENABETEERA
ERZRETAGE -

FEMEEZRNFEMEFETSE2EE
NEETABREERAEURETAE
REEZHMMS2RELEEREE
MEEE BN 28N

AEBESFHABBRERTRMBETE -
HERA RABIBT E A FE - WEARER
RAEBR R B ERT AR
BAE -

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H

3. FEFBRBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
AFEFE Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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—E-AF=A=+—8H 31 March 2019
3. EEFBERBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

DFEFB(E) Fair value measurement (continued)

NEERBBRETEIWE TEEE All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or

FaE IBRBEHAFEFESEEmMS disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the

BEAZEEEHH AESBRAFERE fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

& HAAT level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

F—E — ERAEREENBERTE Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
52 B (RAELFHE) markets for identical assets or liabilities

FE — ERYATEFEMSEE Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
K7 =K B 4 g A B n] B2 lowest level input that is significant to the fair
(TwEEHEEZE) ZEE value measurement is observable, either directly or
13 indirectly

F-E — HEREQATEFENEEBE Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
A2 &IEE i AETA]E lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
=7 MERTT measurement is unobservable

HRIRE R ENR EHRRER 2 EE For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial

FABE  AREERESREERBBETT statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether

BOBEBREBEHATEFEEEMEEE transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

AZHEEBRBAE) BEEAR&E reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is

Wz EEEEER - significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.
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—E-NAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2019
3. EEFBERBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
FEREERE Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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—E-AF=A=+—8H 31 March 2019
3. EEFBERBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
REAL Related parties
— AR ANEE BEA LTINS A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) Z—HAZBATREMALTHER (a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
BB mza AL family and that person
(i) Pl R H AR EE (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i WAEEBAERATE 5 5 (ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) BAKBESIARBEGRANEE (i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
EIEEKE ; Group or of a parent of the Group;
3 or
(b) —FHAEE  mMHFE TIMEMN—IE (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
& - applies:
() ZEBEAEEBER—SE2K (i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
SPNEIIE
(il ZERARTEMNBLE RTINS (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
BrE(HNS—BEBZETAF entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
NIEINGIEAEES =N the other entity);
(il ZERLAEEY AR —E =7 (iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
AR third party;
(ivy ZBEBEBAE=ZFEB 22D (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
¥ MBEBAZE-FTERZ entity is an associate of the third entity;
B & N A)
(V) ZERANEER— %Eﬁiﬁﬁl (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
EREZEEMEENET benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
HIBER R AT S 5 related to the Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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3. FEEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong - Over the lease terms

Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years

Plant, machinery, furniture and - 2 to 15 years
other equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognized is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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3. FESEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
REYE Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as movements in the
asset revaluation reserve.
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3. FEEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from
1 April 2018)” below.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognized initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization
and the loss arising from impairment are recognized in the income
statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)

The Group recognizes an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are one year past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortized cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables, finance lease receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, and finance lease receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognized in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the income statement.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,

financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



BRI @)

—T-NAF=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

3. FEEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TRAEE(BE-TE-N\FEHA-REBER
MEBVBRELEAFIRZEER =%
—NFONA-HZAERANEBEFER
B3 EE) (&)

KRB E

SREBZREAEREBESBET
FeRAEIOBENAT

p=lllg
I\

EEEX

RAHERR  StEERREBERERUE
BRF R BIH R AGHE - TR
B FEARERI - RZIBER T RIARA
5IfR

REEREERARIRERN R ETH
R RREARERARER -

BRI ET AW 2 (T R SO
BEE - UBREBERAN XA D5
P2 BRKA o BERFIREHN R
MR ©

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H

(continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018) (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)";
and (ii) the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognized.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 April 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially as a liability
at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortization.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and
bank deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and bank deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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(continued)

Provisions (continued)

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
products. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted
by the Group are recognized based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside the income statement is
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the income statement over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual installments.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognized
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15. Furthermore, the Group has elected to apply the
practical expedient to recognize the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract as an expense when incurred if the amortization period
of the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognized is
one year or less.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

(b) Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognized over
the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.
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(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income is recognized on a time proportion basis over the
lease term.

Finance lease income is recognized on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the net investment of the finance lease or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the net
investment of the finance lease.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019 119



PR MR @)

—E-NAF=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2019

3. FEEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

120

WEER(CE-N\FNA-RAZAER)

FEARSR ] R TE 1S B A A ek M oz M s
BaErAI st B - W SRR iR
THIELEANE

(@) HEERTH  EEmEBEZKH
DREBMECEBREER
B ERSEZEHEERERBE
BRE s e 2N EE R

(b) ARISE WD IRHRSE

() FEWANERM XL ETEER
R BRENERAREINERTAR
AHEBEAR RRER SR
BEZEREFE

2R

(d) AR BIARRWERRIA 2 RERHES A -

() T4 WA & 4 5 P R 3 b 1
2R

(H BMEEEWANEERA Rz e E A
R BERNERZTRENRERE
MR B FRE TR AT O B s S A H R (40
BER)TEEARRBEESRAZRE
HERREFRZREFE -

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H

(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

service fee income, when the services have been rendered:

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment has been established;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

finance lease income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
net investment of the finance lease or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the net investment
of the finance lease.
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(continued)

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or
an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalized at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalized finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease receivables and initial direct
costs is included in the statement of financial position as finance
lease receivables. The difference between the sum of the
minimum lease receivables, initial direct costs and their present
value is recognized as unearned finance income. Unearned
finance income is recognized over the period of the lease using
the effective interest rate method.
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3. FESEHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
HE#E) Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalized. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognized in the income statement. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive
income or the income statement is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or the income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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3. XEETERBEE)

BERFI(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a) RikaZ(4E) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
(the “DCRB Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible
and had elected to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The
DCRB Scheme operates in a similar way to the MPF Scheme,
except that when an employee leaves the Group prior to his/
her interest in the DCRB Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group would be reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme (the
“Central Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal
government. The contributions payable by these subsidiaries
to the Central Scheme, which are based on a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees, are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Central Scheme.

As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined
benefit pension scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make
monthly contributions to the retirement fund to meet
employees’ retirement and termination benefits entitlements.
The fund is administered by the Employees’ Retirement Fund
Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited under the
Committee’s name with a government approved financial
institution, which acts as the trustee. The cost of providing
pension benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3. FEEHEHRBER)

EERFI(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Rk sZ(4E) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Remeasurements arising from the Old Scheme, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the income statement in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the income statement at
the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

e the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related
costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
under “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses”
and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routine settlements

e Net interest expense or income
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3. XEETERBEE)

BERFI(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a) BikzitZ (&) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related
pension scheme regulations by adding a new contributory
pension scheme (the “New Scheme”) in the Labour Pension
Act, which became effective on 1 July 2005. According to
the amended retirement regulations, the employees could
choose to either select the New Scheme or to stay with the
Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the New
Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
compensation to the government designated account since
the election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still
liable under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the
service years prior to 1 July 2005.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income
statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end
of that period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3. XEETEHERRBEE)

BERR(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) BRRENZIIREG ()

(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognized. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognized for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.
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4, ERGHHERMEETE) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

H R ()

Judgements (continued)

(b) 7ZIRAEEZEZHIH (b) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends
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(c)

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends
from certain subsidiaries according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend. The Group considered that if the
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future, then
no withholding taxes should be provided.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

4. EREFHAER M #E)

H R (48)

Judgements (continued)

(d) FETHE LS & 12 7 (d) Classification between finance leases and operating leases
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Leases are required to be classified as either finance leases
(which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, and give rise to asset and liability recognition
by the lessee and a receivable by the lessor) and operating
leases (which result in expense recognition by the lessee, with

BE) - the asset remaining recognized by the lessor).
LUTERA—ReEEsEARMEM Situations that would normally lead to a lease being classified
g as a finance lease include the following:

o HHHEHEWE HELEEED e the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by
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the end of the lease term;

o FEAEHEEBZTERIZERE M e the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price
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which is expected to be sufficiently lower that the fair
value at the date the option becomes exercisable and, at
the inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the
option will be exercised;

the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset, even if title is not transferred;

at the inception of the lease, the present value of the
minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially
all of the fair value of the leased asset; or

the leased assets are of a specialized nature such that
only the lessee can use them without major modifications
being made.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described as below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate and growth rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
March 2019 was HK$94,923,000 (2018: HK$94,923,000).
More details of the impairment assessment are given in note
17.

(b) Estimation regarding inventory provision

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing
analysis on a periodic basis for those aged inventories.
This involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged
inventory items with the respective net realizable value.
In addition, management of the Group considers various
factors, including historical sales patterns, post year-end
sales and selling prices of inventories, market demand,
technological changes and the Group’s future plan of usage
or sale to ascertain whether provision is required to be made
in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving
items. Physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether any provision is
required to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective
inventories identified.
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AT THEBEE(ZE) Estimation uncertainty (continued)
(c) JEWE ZRH R FEN B 70 & AR5 78 (c) Estimation regarding provision for expected credit losses on
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trade receivables and finance lease receivables

Under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018, when
determining whether impairment of trade receivables and
finance lease receivables is required, the Group takes
into consideration the ageing status, historical collection
patterns, existence of any disputes, trading history with each
customer and other available information concerning the
creditworthiness of customers. Following the identification
of objective evidence for potential impairment of debts, the
responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant customers
and report to management on the recoverability. Impairment
allowance is only made for those impaired receivables that are
unlikely to be collected.

Under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018, the Group
uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables
and finance lease receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns. The Group takes
into consideration information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analyzed.
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ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c) Estimation regarding provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables and finance lease receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and finance lease
receivables is disclosed in notes 20 and 22 to the financial
statements, respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of
plastic injection moulding machines and related products. For
management purposes, the Group is organized into business units
based on the locations of customers and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(i) Mainland China and Hong Kong;

(ii) Taiwan; and

(iii) Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, unallocated income and
gains, finance costs, share of profits less losses of associates
and corporate and unallocated expenses are excluded from such
measurement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred tax
assets and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits.
Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities.

There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.

The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets,
liabilities and expenditure information for the Group’s operating
segments for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

RRUNEFH
pax:id 6
Segment revenue PEEE

from external customers Segment results
(BEFTT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018 2019 2018
REARREREE Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,061,796 1,121,158 112,726 125,810
=y Taiwan 125,133 125,583 4,401 4,849
Ht R Other overseas countries 449,009 421,138 26,750 17,922

1,635,938 1,667,879 143,877 148 581
BEIDEBRRBA Reconciliation of results of operating segments

RAAGOT to profit before tax is as follows:

REnHEE Operating segment results 143,877 148 581
RED WA Rz Unallocated income and gains 10,869 12,445
PERAES T Corporate and unallocated expenses (29,828) (34,001)
BEKK Finance costs (1,954) (1,248)
E(RH A DR BB Share of profits less losses of associates 1,043 3,366
BRI Profit before tax 124,007 129,143

HEEBEARR AR 2019 F3;
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

AHEE FHEE

Segment assets Segment liabilities
(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018 2019 2018
REAERES Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,197,534 2,543,604 428,621 573,938
= Taiwan 154,090 142,869 29,832 34,877
HigsER Other overseas countries 362,544 326,866 62,654 105,882
2,714,168 3,013,339 521,107 714,697
N YNIE 3 Investments in associates 31,211 32,627 - -
rELERE Unallocated assets 706,366 649,734 - -
AEDAR Unallocated liabilities - - 164,562 98,023
3,451,745 3,695,700 685,669 812,720

AfpAiER
Other segment information
BRUERAR/ (BE)
WHEFERE
EREH :EETN Impairment losses ERER
Depreciation and Other non-cash charged/(written-back) in the Capital
amortization income income statement, net expenditure

(B8+1) (HK$'000) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
hEAEREE Mainland China and Hong Kong 53,978 50018 (69,242) (6,579) 4582 (5,923) 15,385 52,599
ai Taiwan 1,583 1,266 (635) - 112 (790) 899 2431
AENEZR Other overseas countries 2,859 4,050 (2,311) (12) 616 (169) 1,740 4,706
58,420 %33 (72,188) (6,591) 5310 (6,882) 18,024 59,736
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

kRBEE
Non-current assets
(B¥For) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
A K BE R BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,066,466 1,102,049
& e Taiwan 87,782 94,259
E b gs R Other overseas countries 862 301
1,155,110 1,196,609

B ZIFRBEEERTIREEME R
HBRECHAEER R TAE -

IREFZER

E—T-NFRZF-N\F=ZR=F—
BIEFE  BE-HIINEPZR SN
BEAEERRE BN ZTHAL -

6. Wi
AEBEXRAEFPANNKGEEEEMA

B WHATBREHEINE %?%J%@}%
EPEER —RAXR

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets and financial
instruments.

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue.

6. REVENUE

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers is related to
sale of goods, and all the revenue is recognized at a point in time
when control of goods is transferred to customers generally on
delivery of the goods.

CEMTFoT) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
KERPE NS Revenue from contracts with customers 1,635,938 -
HEEM Sale of goods - 1,667,879

1,635,938 1,667,879

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH
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2IFWFEER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

6. REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregated revenue information
For the year ended 31 March 2019

CEMTFor) (HK$'000)
REEFEHANRE Revenue from contracts

—HEER with customers — sale of goods
1 52 T Geographical markets
B RE R B/ Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,061,796
= Taiwan 125,133
HAgINAR Other overseas countries 449,009
RERFA OSSR Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,635,938

TRESFFARE RIS OB EMNALR
EHAERNKEEE

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognized in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

(BEMFor) (HK$'000) 2019
SAFREHYAHAEEN Revenue recognized that was included in contract liabilities at

B R = the beginning of the reporting period

SHEE M Sale of goods 57,029
JEAIE T Performance obligations

BERASEROETHERBRIIMT

HEEin

BHEERINEREER - MR —RK
RRMEF=+RE—B/NTRAEH -

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarized below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is generally due between 30 and 180 days from
delivery.
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7. BRBLATER

AEEZBBADENE MR (GEA) T

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2019

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BIF

(BEBFT) (HK$'000) Hii# Notes 2019 2018
ERTFERAE Cost of inventories sold 1,282,334 1,244,913
e Depreciation 14 57,033 53,951
ENtHAER Amortization of prepaid land lease

i payments 16 1,387 1,383
HEME  MENKRFRHE 2 Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of

B8, (W) property, plant and equipment* (513) 27
mE - BEKEREZ Write-off of items of property,

EX-N plant and equipment* 14 770 2,248
KEME N2 &P Minimum lease payments under

FERFRERIESL M operating leases 6,122 5,253
R MFHEER Research and development costs™** 40,364 42,117
TRATF B R/ *+* Government grants*/**** (21,002) (13,005)
e & Auditor’s remuneration 2,502 2,329
ETwRMEZH(EZ/MS  Employee benefit expenses (excluding

BRON—M1229) - directors’ emoluments — note 9):

T& K& Wages and salaries 231,894 266,100

BIREFHEIHEK Pension scheme contributions

(EREHEREE) (defined contribution scheme) 25,281 24.410

RIREET B A Pension scheme costs (defined

(EFEBNETE) benefit scheme) 28 410 599
FEUE 5 BRI Impairment/(write-back of

BAE, CR{ERE) impairment) of trade receivables,

SRR net*** 20 4,720 (1,583)
FEBE(BERELT) Provision/(write-back of provision)

SRR for inventories, net** 976 (4,415)
FEl mh & M E IR Impairment/(write-back of

BAE, CREHREE) impairment) of finance lease

P R receivables, net*** 22 (715) 1,050
H b e AR R Impairment/(write-back of

BAE, CRERE) impairment) of other receivables,

P R net*** 21 329 (1,934)
PE W = ERE Foreign exchange differences, net*** 15,986 3,594
"EME 2 AN FE Fair value gains on investment

Ugzs* properties* 15 (64,119) (8,512)
BRAMEZESKA Gross rental income on

BE* owner-occupied properties* (3,423) (2,657)
B E B R YR Less: Direct operating expenses

MEEEZ arising from rental-earning
HELEST owner-occupied properties 207 201
BERAMECZES Net rental income on
WA T 58 owner-occupied properties (3,216) (2,456)

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH
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—T-NAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2019
7. BRBIAGERI(E) 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

REEZBRBANEN D% (5T A) 5 The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BIE : (&) (continued)

CEMToT) (HK$'000) K7z Notes 2019 2018

WEMEZHERA Gross rental income on

BE* investment properties*® (24,156) (22,466)

B B E YIS ERER Less: Direct operating expenses

HeELEZ arising from rental-earning
BELEST investment properties 1,673 1,651
KEMFE 2B WA Net rental income on
ecd-cl investment properties (22,483) (20,815)

FBUT A Interest income* (8,865) (9,996)

BEAEF S AS Finance lease interest income* (2,004) (2,449)

SR AEZ T Write-off of aged liabilities* (8,326) (354)

* ZEBEEEERGAWRZERZIEMk *  These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the
AR W= FrE A e face of the consolidated income statement.

* ZEBBEERGREWERZIHEERA] **  This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
A ° income statement.

o ZEBEDBERGERER 2 EM *** These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the
EHFREIA o face of the consolidated income statement.

R EpArh B K BRI TR E B AR % ****\arious government grants have been received mainly for setting up
BB #E o WEIBEATHEBY - a5 BT research activities in Mainland China. Conditions or contingencies
BEMRER 2 GG EEFEERER relating to these grants are fulfilled and they are not deducted
B2 BRI N ED - B i RR A H R from the related costs which they are intended to compensate, but
A o fimi o BRI 8BRS 4 B BT UC BC 69 A8 recorded in other income. Government grants received for which
Sz HH ) AR B A ST Y A R i R B3R - Rl related expenditure has not yet been incurred or to which there were
iR eMBARREZFIERT HtbEMRR unfulfilled conditions are included in “Other payables and accruals”on
MEFTEEIYIR - the face of the consolidated statement of financial position.

8. MEMAX 8. FINANCE COSTS
(EETFT) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
RITE A E Interest on bank loans 1,954 1,248
140 BHESEABRAT 2019 Fi) CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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—E-AF=A=+—8H 31 March 2019
9. EEHM 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
*E}Jéjz?ﬁiﬁ Bl & & R R FI % 383(1) Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
(a) ORMEURERAI(FEREES Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
*J/\é‘fﬂ)%% BIEE2 DB+ FENE B EH T Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
BT : Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
(EMFor) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
e Fees:
WITES Executive directors - .
B IERITES Independent non-executive directors 880 880
H A Other emoluments:
e RMEREDNE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,054 11,192
i%iﬁﬁﬁf’] 14T Performance related bonuses - 909
RIREET B Pension scheme contributions 72 72
8,006 13,053
(@) BYFHTES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FR - XN TEILERNTEENERS The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
e the year were as follows:
(EBFor) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
BRE L Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 215 215
Anish LALVANI%c 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 230 230
PR B AE Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 215 215
MFERE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 220 220
880 880
FRN - WEEMFNZS TRELIED There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
TEFR(ZE—N\F - 8|)o non-executive directors during the year (2018: Nil).
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—E-NAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2019
9. EEFM (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BITEE (b) Executive directors
2019
2
2R
ENFE 3] Eihe
Salaries, B HEL:S
allowances  Performance Pension @t
#%  and benefits related scheme Total
(BETT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  emoluments
BEEL Dr. Chen CHIANG* - 247 - - 247
BEBRaT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,555 - 18 2,573
BERRE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,885 - 18 1,903
BUREHE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,268 - 18 1,286
REFERAE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG** - 1,099 - 18 1,117
- 7,054 - 72 7,126
2018
2
2R
ENFE 3] Bihe
Salaries, BaRa FHEIft
allowances  Performance Pension @t
#4%  and benefits related scheme Total
(BEFT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  emoluments
BEEL Dr. Chen CHIANG* - 4,041 337 - 4378
BBRaT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,537 213 18 2,768
BERAE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,886 130 18 2,034
ERREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,568 132 18 1,718
REEL A Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG** - 1,160 97 18 1,275
- 11,192 909 72 12,173
* RZE-NFEUA-+=H " BEE *  Dr. Chen CHIANG retired as chairman and executive director
TREFFERATESUEZERE and was appointed as honorary chairman on 23 April 2018.
BIE o
= RZE-NFOAFTNEGREBRR ** Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG retired as executive director subsequent
%) REELEERTHPITES - to the end of the reporting period on 19 April 2019.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

9. EEFMZ) 9. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

(b) MTES(#E)

WITEEHMEBELNT

The emoluments of the executive directors fell within the
following bands:

YN
Number of directors

(VB )(HKS) 2019 2018
1-500,000 1
1,000,001-1,500,000 2 1
1,500,001-2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001-2,500,000 - 1
2,500,001-3,000,000 1 1
4,000,001-4,500,000 - 1

5 5

ER_TENFE  2RERERWT
g FHTEFERRBERRRE
EAHFH BEEAKEXRBTES
kR FAARTEEEEEER
MO ERRBHR/I0%(ZZE—N
F:10%) c ERTEERREER -
WITESZEAFHMEREZE R
B RBKF o I - B
RALBFIUfAHRE  REEZT
—NE=ZA=+T—HLHBEFEA
HEMREEEETRRBE  HE
ZE B R B % 26,0007T © =75
M MRMEEEETREBR
A REER S T 2B TEAL

TR AREYELTEFTFHAE
EHTMAREERERMAREE
R 2 ¥REA - SKEERLAHIE

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H

Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami
in late 2008, the executive directors had voluntarily agreed
to effect a temporary reduction of their basic remuneration
until the business of the Group recovers. During the year, all
the executive directors had agreed to a temporary reduction
of their basic remuneration of approximately 10% (2018:
10%). The basic remuneration of the executive directors
would be resumed to the original levels as contained in their
service agreements when the executive directors consider
appropriate. Further, Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG has
entered into a supplemental agreement whereby, for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019, his basic remuneration
will be reduced by an amount of HK$26,000 if he fails to
achieve certain performance targets. On the other hand, he
will be entitled to certain incentive bonus if he can achieve
certain performance targets.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2018: five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 9 to the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration for the year of the one (2018: Nil)

ENFARAMEFBHT : non-director highest paid employee are as follows:

(BE¥For) (HK$°000) 2019 2018

e RMEEYAE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 865 -

RIRBMRTEAT Performance related bonuses - -

RREFT B Pension scheme contributions 18 -
883 -

FEERSFHEEHSHBENT

The remuneration of the non-director highest paid employee fell
within the following band:

BEAH
Number of employee
(BB )(HKS) 2019 2018
500,001-1,000,000 1 _

11.FrBH X% H

FA - AREREGFHRBBNEH - To
RALBRBELRNEE 2 ERBH A
(ZT—N\F ) - HipiblE 2 mFHR IR
AIRAEREEEBRERR REER
ZRITMEEE -

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2018: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

(EMFor) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
BIHE - Current:
AEEFTH Charge for the year
BB Hong Kong - _
H i [E Elsewhere 18,383 18,560
BEFEDRESE Underprovision in prior years 695 718
IRIE(HT5E29) Deferred (note 29) 15,700 7,034
REEFHBEZH Tax charge for the year 34,778 26,312
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

11.FrE8ii (&) 11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

HBRBADEF NERR AR R REKTEA
BIFMEBRAEER ZEEHRETE
(HEHI2%E40%)(—FE—N\F : 12%
E25%)ZMEXH - EIRERMEHE

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates, ranging from 12% to 40% (2018: 12% to
25%), for the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

ZRIEZ 2 BEWAT rates is as follows:
(GE#For) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
35 A | Profit before tax 124,007 129,143
REERMRAE 2 T8 Tax at the statutory tax rates 35,613 30,008
(ERIEX S a1 Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

BIS TR, R X specific provinces and local authorities (9,340) (6,723)
NP R R EE Profits and losses attributable to associates (261) (842)
IR - Expenses not deductible for tax 19,948 20,061
BABNTLIA 2 WA Income not subject to tax (16,421) (16,284)
AERZ RFEHIAEIE Tax losses for the year not recognized 6,678 2,277
FARERZBEFE Unrecognized tax losses from

FIAE B prior years utilized (2,672) (3,152)
BEFENEHIE Adjustments in respect of current tax

2 P of prior years 695 718
REBE Z KB AR ERFHE Effect of withholding tax on distributable

EANBR s & profits of the subsidiaries of the Group 538 249
BAEEEBRMNERAEZ Tax charge at the Group’s effective

METH tax rates 34,778 26,312

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

146

—E-NAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2019
12. k& 12.DIVIDENDS
(BE¥For) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
FREMKRE : Dividends paid during the year:
BE-_ZT—)\F=A=+—8H1It Final in respect of the financial year
VBFE 2R — ended 31 March 2018 — HK$0.05
BT MARE0.057T (year ended 31 March 2017: HK$0.026)
(Hz2—Z—+tF=ZA=+—H1It per ordinary share
FE : B¥0.0267T) 31,527 16,394
B2 \E=ZA=+—HIt Special final in respect of the financial year
BT S 2 R RIR R — & ended 31 March 2018 — Nil
(Bz—FT—+E=A=+—H1F (year ended 31 March 2017: HK$0.032
FE - BiREERE#0.0327T) per ordinary share) - 20,177
HE - ERTEAREEE0.037T Interim — HK$0.03 (2018: HK$0.03)
—ZE—)N\F : B¥0.037T) per ordinary share 18,916 18,916
50,443 55,487
EEAHRE Proposed final dividends:
RHE — FR S @A B E50.047T Final — HK$0.04 (2018: HK$0.05)
(ZZ— N\ : B¥0.055T) per ordinary share 25,221 31,527

REFEF 2 KPR SALARBBRIRAE
B BT 2 BREAF RN /ER T AIE
B o ZEW IR IR KR FE AR B

<)

i

IB.AQFAEEREAREERER

BREARBMNDBEFAARRERFE
AJE (R A B 55 778 #90,279,0007T (=
T — )\ : $¥101,877,0007T) M ER
BB 1T AR 2 s 19 80630,531,600
B (=—Z— \4F : 630,531,6000% )5t EZ F

A=)
1F°

HRAKERBE_T-AFR TN\
FZA=+—BLEFREERITEME
BEERE  BNREFARELMES
N EREABTETHE -

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

13.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the final
dividend payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year of HK$90,279,000 (2018: HK$101,877,000) and on
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 630,531,600
(2018: 630,531,600) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
presented for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
these years.
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—E-AF=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2019
14.9% - RER®RE 14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
—E-AF=A=1+—H 31 March 2019
KAEEL BE
kEF R Hes - B
HEgF PER R
Freehold Plant,
land and machinery,
buildings, ERIR furniture
and leasehold  Construction and other ast
(B¥FT) (HK$'000) buildings in progress equipment Total
RZE-NF=ZA=1+—H At 31 March 2018
A Cost 820,185 13,614 1,071,216 1,905,015
ZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (346,471) - (855,397)  (1,201,868)
ER¥E Net carrying amount 473,714 13,614 215,819 703,147
RZE-N\ENA—H" At 1 April 2018, net of accumulated
BNk 2 ERAE depreciation and impairment 473,714 13,614 215,819 703,147
RE Additions 7 4,460 13,557 18,024
HE Disposals - - (79) (79)
B Write-offs (24) - (746) (770)
[ Transfers - (3,345) 3,345 -
BRERENE Transfer to investment properties (4,582) - - (4,582)
AEEFERE Depreciation provided during the year (21,380) - (35,653) (57,033)
BEHAE Exchange realignment (27,596) (1,150) (15,333) (44,079)

RZE-NE=A=1+—H" At 31 March 2019, net of accumulated
I 2T E RRE depreciation and impairment 420,139 13,579 180,910 614,628

RZE-NE=ZA=1—H At 31 March 2019

XA Cost 765,166 13,579 1,013,016 1,791,761

SFMELRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (345,027) - (832,106)  (1,177,133)

ERFE Net carrying amount 420,139 13,579 180,910 614,628
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 March 2018

KAEEL BE
kEF R HeE - BR
HEgF kMRS
Freehold Plant,
land and machinery,
buildings, EEIR furniture
and leasehold  Construction and other ast
(BEFT) (HK$000) buildings in progress equipment Total
R-E—+F=f=+—H At 31 March 2017
AR Cost 751,078 11,748 941,139 1,703,965
SEMELRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (295,729) - (767,980)  (1,063,709)
EEFE Net carrying amount 455,349 11,748 173,159 640,256
RZE—+FWA—H " At 1 April 2017, net of accumulated
EHREFHERRA depreciation and impairment 455,349 11,748 173,159 640,256
NE Additions 138 4,969 54, 405 59,612
HE Disposals - - (280) (280)
FRa ! Write-offs - (71) (2,177) (2,248)
R Transfers - (4,652) 4,652 -
AEEMERE Depreciation provided during the year (20,965) - (32,986) (53,951)
EECES Exchange realignment 39,192 1,620 19,046 59,858
RZE-NF=ZA=+—-H" At 31 March 2018, net of accumulated
Bk 25 ERA(E depreciation and impairment 473714 13,614 215,819 703,147
RZE-N\E=A=1+—H At 31 March 2018
KA Cost 820,185 13,614 1,071,216 1,905,015
SEMELRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (346,471) - (855,397)  (1,201,868)
EmFE Net carrying amount 473,714 13,614 215,819 703,147

HE-_Z-hAhE=A=+—HItFER
AEB —AHSEFEREZREYE
([EREREWE]) - ZHASEFTRER
ZBRERBRREEREGHERE  EQ
B 48 51 576 18,006,000 (M35 15)
MET R BEEERGEMAREEZRITE
RABMEMGE - KRB EEEZEMER
485t A 53,409,000 7T (48 # a7 i 1
2 BMEEEN T A SR EEESE
15,0007t (Mf5E16) 1) @ ERIEE 2 EE
I8 & (E5 1852 000 B 5t A M2 H
Uiz o HEZHE—FEBEHINNTHRE
MisE15 o

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

During the year ended 31 March 2019, one of the Group’s
leasehold buildings was transferred to investment properties (the
“Transfer to Investment Properties”). That leasehold building
was revalued individually at the date of the transfer by Cushman
& Wakefield Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, at an aggregate fair value of HK$8,006,000
(note 15) based on its existing use. A total revaluation surplus of
HK$3,409,000, after taking into account the carrying value of the
respective prepaid land lease payments at the date of the transfer
of HK$15,000 (note 16), resulting from the above valuation had
been credited to other comprehensive income, together with the
related deferred tax liability of HK$852,000. Further details of the
valuation were set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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—E-AF=A=+—8H 31 March 2019

15. 8 EYE 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BT T) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
REYIHEREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 320,736 281,600
NE Additions - 204
B EIG A The Transfer to Investment Properties 8,006 -
PR ER Fair value changes recognized in the

NEEES(HET) income statement (note 7) 64,119 8,512

b 55, R Exchange realignment (20,854) 30,400
R=ZA=+—HMEAE Carrying amount at 31 March 372,007 320,736

AEEREMERBZSEMEZEE -
FrE kRS AR B RS TEY
X -BRIAFENREMERERER
BWE 2 AHNELE%8,006,0007T 2 #
—HHBEINNMHREMEL4HN - K
SEREMEREBLLEXERMGE
B R BEERITARRBMEMRE R
—E-NEFEZR=T—RZERHREER
7B #372,007,0007C (ZE— N\F : B
320,736,0007T) - AREERETFE
REZEINEAEMEEAREEYEZID
HRfAE - EZIREBTETISME - &
2 BUMUARREARGEEEE - K
SEERESF AN FEMBREET
HERLAEERSR REESRE(GEME

TTafam °

REMETIBREBELEHERTE =" 58
AE s E—PFBHRT B REM T
34(a) °

SEREMEZE ¥

o

oy

FIEEM 5200

m Bt

\

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H

The investment properties of the Group were determined as
industrial properties in Mainland China, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. Apart from the
revaluation of the Group’s investment properties at HK$8,006,000
during the date of the Transfer to Investment Properties as detailed
in note 14 to the financial statements, the investment properties of
the Group were revalued on 31 March 2019 based on valuations
performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers, at HK$372,007,000
(2018: HK$320,736,000). Each year, the Group’s management
decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s management
has discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 34(a) to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 200.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

15. REWHE(E) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

DNFEER

Fair value hierarchy

TRIRAEEREMEZ R FEFHERE

Y hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

R-ZB-RE=A=+-H
NATEHSERA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2019 using

150

RERTS EATEE EATTEE

ZHE BAHE BAYE

(%) (%5=FE) (=)

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs gt
(F¥Fr) (HK$°000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WTHEE 2B U AT EHE Recurring fair value measurement for:
T#y% Industrial properties - - 372,007 372,007
R-B-N¥=A=t-H
HWATEHERA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2018 using

RERTS EATHE EAFTEE

ZHE BAHE BAYE

(5-18) (=) (B=8)

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs act
(BEFT) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

MUTERZ&FHEATEHE . Recurring fair value measurement for:

T#ME Industrial properties - - 320,736 320,736

FR-F-EBEEF_EZRLETAIF
BEfEEE  TEAF=EEAXEL

T )N\F )

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into

or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).
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—ZT-hF=A=+—H 31 March 2019
15. R&EWME &) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
DRERBHRE) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
IR AKEMEGREMBGENEZREE Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
WA CHME - inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
BERTAEHE
LIPN - ¢
fREFE Significant hnEFI9ME
Valuation unobservable Weighted average
techniques inputs 2019 2018
IEME wEFE FHMES(TAH) #B%2,471,0007T 72 309,0007T
Industrial properties Investment method Term rent HK$2,471,000 HK$2,309,000

(per month)

FHM X 7 7
Term yield (%)

EEEe(TA) 7B#2.320,000T 7E#2.109,0007T
Reversionary rent HK$2,320,000 HK$2,109,000
(per month)

G 7 7

Reversionary yield

(%)
AEBTIEMEZAFEDIFEREES The fair value of the Group’s industrial properties is determined
% UIRBHEAONESWA - Wi R using the investment method, by capitalizing the rental income
MAERBEERERE - A FEFEHE derived from the existing tenancy with due allowance for the
FTHHSMERHSZE EABEHEERNRE reversionary potential of the property. The fair value measurement
FHWEERERREE 2B RBEE - is positively correlated to the term rent and reversionary rent and

negatively correlated to term yield and reversionary yield.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2019

16.PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

(BE#TFor) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
REYIHMEREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 38,809 37,365
EEREREE The Transfer to Investment Properties

(KisE14) (note 14) (15) -
PN Iog Amortized during the year (1,387) (1,383)
B 5 #E Exchange realignment (1,794) 2,827
R=ZA=+—HBH®EEE Carrying amount at 31 March 35,613 38,809
mENH D BRIEER]S Current portion included in deposits,

TE T N EH A FE W BR ZX A prepayments and other receivables

(Hi#21) (note 21) (1,407) (1,479)
JEREN Non-current portion 34,206 37,330

17. 88 17.GOODWILL

(BE#TFor) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
[l Goodwill 94,923 94,923
RZTE—+FHA—H Cost and carrying amount at

T )\F=ZA=F+—H8H - 1 April 2017,

—E-NFOA—BK 31 March 2018,

—E-NF=ZA=+—H 1 April 2018 and

2B BRENE 31 March 2019 94,923
EEREIR Impairment testing of goodwill

HEBEHEEZHENR TASERS
EARKME ([ HE])IEREZH B E
ETRENR - ZEMBATZ AT KRE S
BIORBERBEZFEETE  fHEHMH
WERERERAADFHRBRE RER -
HEAEEFENEZEREERARER
RRIFrEE - BBIREHGIERR T EF
NEBEFENRE  REBEROEH - R
EREBRMANTREE/L4%(ZF
—\FF : 11%) (BAT) - AR BRAE BAF /8
NEIZFERR - AFHEZH

WEEIHRE -

152 EHEBEBRATR 2019 F5H

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the Group’s subsidiaries in Shunde, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), for impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of the subsidiaries has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculation include the expected growth
rate and discount rate. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting current and prior years performance and development
expectations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 14% (2018: 11%) which is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of
3%.
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B ISR R 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-AF=A=+—8H 31 March 2019
18. NEtE NTI2RE 18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(B For) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
FEREEFE Share of net assets 31,211 32,627
EREBE AR ZRRREAE HERE - & The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
B 2B R—BR=+RAEZNM - 5t interest-free and normally settled on a term of 30 days.
I RZE—AF=A=+—8 - Er# Accordingly, as at 31 March 2019, the amounts due to associates
ENRERFEMTZ,792,000t(ZE—N of HK$7,792,000 (2018: HK$12,282,000) are included in the
& BH12,282,000L) B REAENE S trade and bills payables, as disclosed in note 25 to the financial
REERFA - RS RERW 2587 - statements.
FrEAERE 2L QA RHARPREEMR All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in
RAPBERELE ZBEEA ° the PRC and operating in Mainland China.
N R 2 FFMAERINT ¢ Particulars of the associates are as follows:
A E A
EREI

Percentage of

BEUWEMELR  ownership interest

%18 Paid-up attributable FEEK
Name registered capital to the Group Principal activities
FILT EHSERER AR 1,520,000 7T 25 BUENIHEIREREE®D
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Co., Ltd. US$1,520,000 Manufacture and sale

of iron casting products

BT IRIEE E MM EE R R AR 800,000% 7T 25 RS
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery US$800,000 Dormant

Company, Limited @
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—E-AF=A=+—H 31 March 2019
18. REEERNR ZRE (&) 18.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Btat Notes:
(1) B RRZEEMBEHREIEBBEBLKE (1) The statutory financial statements of the above companies are not

FTED BT R ok & 5t BN E 75 T B FR A8 4R
Hib B ARIERZ -

(2) FRMARU=ZA=+—BREKRSESHEE (2)
NFEEERAR 2 HREEH -

(3) EX AT RBEHRBR 3

audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to
conform with their holding company’s reporting date.

The English company name is translated for identification purposes
only.

TRINRAEE @R IEE KA QA The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
RS EABEE - of the Group’s associates that are not individually material:
(E#For) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
i B R B g A Share of the associates’ profit for the year 1,043 3,366
HEEE AR EMEE Share of the associates’ other comprehensive

sk /() income/(expenses) (2,459) 3,339
i l/NE]| Share of the associates’ total comprehensive

wamks (ZH) income/(expenses) (1,416) 6,705
REFRBZ N A Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s

A REERRE investments in the associates 31,211 32,627

19. 7% 19.INVENTORIES
(BEMFor) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
RE Raw materials 196,599 217,418
TS Work in progress 165,243 199,680
2k Finished goods 191,154 385,397
552,996 802,495
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

20.BE Z REBRM 20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(B For) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
FEUE SR Trade receivables 713,646 682,881
B Impairment (81,062) (87,801)
EUE B R FUFRE Trade receivables, net 632,584 595,080
eI =R AR X Bills receivable 282,514 271,689
BUNE 5 N EIERERT Total trade and bills receivables 915,098 866,769
BB EIERBE D Portion classified as non-current portion (30,779) (22,588)
e ER Current portion 884,319 844,181

BEPZESER—RAAERS  RITE

BRERNE - AEEREENEF 2
XENREBRTEPERER  FEH—
RE=TRE—B/N\TX - AEERIE
RIS B IR R EURR - BRE

ERgRERE -

AR LANBHEARENEKE SRR
BRI AAREDAEPHAK - #RBE
AROEREERR - NEBEY B % FE
BB A AR EMNRERZYM®m
B IEWE 5 BRFE 179,663,000 (—F
—J\%F : B#85,815,0007T ) LA T F
K61%(ZE—N\F :61%);FEREE
H—RrT_EAZ_+tHE@EAI - Fek
ZEUWE 5 K RIBERRA IS, o

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank
bills or on credit. The Group grants credit to customers based on
their respective business strength and creditability, with credit
periods of 30 days to 180 days in general. The Group adopts strict
control policies over credit terms and receivables that serve to
minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade and bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Except for the trade receivables of
HK$79,663,000 (2018: HK$85,815,000) which are interest-
bearing at an average interest rate of 6.1% (2018: 6.1%) per
annum and with credit periods of 12 months to 24 months in
general, the remaining trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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20. BRREZ RREBHRAR(E)

RBERRZRRESERRBEZAHR
R EEREE ZRKOMAT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

(BETFT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
ATRA Within 90 days 275,450 258,879
N+—ZEZ—BN+X 91 to 180 days 92,680 118,578
—BNA\+T—Z=ARTERX 181 to 365 days 163,745 155,670
HE—F Over 1 year 100,709 61,953

632,584 595,080

FEWE ZIR R ERBEEHEEFMT

The movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables are as

follows:

(BE¥For) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
REH] At beginning of year 87,801 89,390
BRIk RIIGH R EER Impairment losses charged/(write-back of

((T AR EEERRE) impairment losses credited) to the

SEEA(HET) income statement, net (note 7) 4,720 (1,583)
T e E A &5 Amounts written off as uncollectible (7,060) (6,443)
BE 5, L Exchange realignment (4,399) 6,437
RER At end of year 81,062 87,801

BE-F—NEZA=+— AU EERHE

BB & ERE 9 A 1E

REREBHRBEBREETRED
1 AT EBRHEEER - BEXER
BAERUBERANZEEF 2 &8RN0
BB BET - Lt B RRRAR RS
R BE¥RELRNEREAHAIENEEE
EFIE AR SR R R i T8
BENAIEER -

156 EHEBBRATR 2019 F5H

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 March 2019

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date

using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.

The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings

of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The

calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time

value of money and reasonable and supportable information

that is available at the reporting date about past events, current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

20.ENES R EBRR(E 20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

BE T NF=ZA="1—HIFERE
BIBRI IR & ERFE 9N 2 hi1E ()

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 March 2019
(continued)

TREIE R BB
BIEFNEERRER :

CE: RN S 1)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

RZZE—hF=A=+—H At 31 March 2019

af
Past due

-z k)

PRATE -BNHR -BNAEX
BI#  Less than 91to Over @t
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
EHEEERX Expected credit loss rate 0% 5% 7% 47% 11%
REERRE(FETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 402,546 115,723 43,690 151,687 713,646
BHEEERFETFT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 885 6,125 3,066 70,986 81,062

BE —FE—\F=H=+—HIFERE Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 March 2018

BEE: fﬁﬁ/;ﬁ%ﬁz//%[é

R-ZE-NF=ZA=+—H  LlEKE
ZERTOBRERELRIEE LG ERE

Included in the above impairment allowance for trade receivables,
which was measured on incurred credit losses under HKAS 39,

VFTHEEEEFEEFETE  EpE
HEFERRERWKE ZRRBEBE
83,844,0007T * EREER 2 RAEAS
#87,534,0007T ° B VE1E BB B & 2 &
I E SERFH M A B A€ 2 B /R 18 5
QaikEIF D ERER 2B -

RIZE-NF=ZA=t—BHZREEFES
FHERIFE 35 AR AR BIREN B E 5
RREXNERBEAE ZREDTAT

as at 31 March 2018 was an allowance for individually impaired
trade receivables of HK$83,844,000 with a gross carrying amount
before provision of HK$87,534,000. The individually impaired
trade receivables related to customers that were in default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments and only a portion of
the receivables was expected to be recovered.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that were not
considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 as at 31 March 2018,
based on the payment due date, was as follows:

(GBEFor) (HK$°000) 2018
REIER (W R 38 B sk Rk B ) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 353,660
BEALR TR Less than 90 days past due 123,292
wELt+—Z2—8/N\t+X 91 to 180 days past due 50,078
mHBA—BANTX Over 180 days past due 64,360

591,390
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

20. ENES REBRAR(Z) 20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

158

BE-F—\FZA=+— AU FERE
B R RAIEI9H Z AE ()

I AR B HR SR (B 2 8 W R TR e sl A de
M SRRk 2 B o

BB MBI R E 2 IR RS A T
HAEEERIRFTHNBUES « &
RBELR  ARAESERR AREE
BXRVE|EREE  HRFEHRDERRZ
A EHRE - RBARABESRRIEES
SRTEAEIRAF LB ERE -

R 5 2 e IR R 2 B A A7
T -

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 March 2018
(continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no impairment allowance under
HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable.

The maturity dates of the bills receivable as at the end of the
reporting period are analyzed as follows:

(GE#For) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
N+EXA Within 90 days 114,772 121,423
At+—ZE2—FN\TX 91 to 180 days 104,782 106,575
—EBANT—E=ZBFA~TRX 181 to 365 days 62,960 43,691

282,514 271,689

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H  BEEREER
RMEAMIBE(ZT-NF: E) -
Bt sR S RE B Mol s E M
Rk 2 RUSRT - BEEREERTIZ2E
AEEBEBBRREERBEROAMER -
BRI ERFEARRERTER K
AL BRI TR AN SR B0 SR PR BB 1R
B DEHREEEMEAR_-F-NF=A
=+ —BEWEREEBRELTERX -

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

As at 31 March 2019, none of the bills receivable is either past
due or impaired (2018: Nil). The financial assets included in
the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default. The expected credit losses are estimated
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. No loss allowance was provided because
management estimated that the expected credit losses as at 31
March 2019 were not significant.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

21.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

CEMToT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
HEASENE Deposits and prepayments 31,819 75,539
H A FEUR AR SR Other receivables 42,527 35,098
Y8 A Less: Impairment (15,707) (16,448)

AR T EER Prepaid land lease payments,
mENVER D (HFE16) current portion (note 16) 1,407 1,479
FEUFI TR Tax recoverable 14 1,194
60,060 96,862

Hth FEURFORE BB = EH I T

The movements in impairment allowance for deposits and
prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

(BMFr) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
REH At beginning of year 16,448 17,077
BERRERNBARERER, Impairment losses charged/(write-back of

(Gt AHREEBREME) impairment losses credited) to the income

FRR(KEET) statement, net (note 7) 329 (1,934)
E RN B Amounts written off as uncollectible - (529)
PEE 5, 3 2 Exchange realignment (1,070) 1,834
RER At end of year 15,707 16,448

—MmE - AREFERERE MR
BN+ —EAEHREEEENEERE -
B H fth UG BR 518 615,707,000 (=&
— )\ : E¥16,448,0007T) 50 » ZFE
EfEaBRELRRN T —NLF=A
=T —HOEHEEBRILTERK - &8
PRSEVEES REBRERINRESC
JEURBR K ©

FErEMmBEBRERRERES ©E
¥ 2 VBB BIR (E H b FE AR R BB
15,707,000 L ( =& — )\ 5F : B
16,448,000 ) + HRNE#E R < RE A
REH16,137,000T (=T — N\F : B
16,448,0007T ) °

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

Generally, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12-month ECL of other receivables. Except for other receivables
of HK$15,707,000 (2018: HK$16,448,000), none of these assets
is either past due or impaired and the expected credit losses as at
31 March 2019 are not significant. The financial assets included
in these balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

Included in the above impairment allowance for other receivables
is an allowance for individually impaired other receivables
of HK$15,707,000 (2018: HK$16,448,000) with a gross
carrying amount before provision of HK$16,137,000 (2018:
HK$16,448,000).
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—E-AF=A=+—H 31 March 2019

22. BB BMEEERN 22.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
AEBHERETIVHRTEF - 2EHE The Group leases certain of its injection moulding machines to its
DIEARMEHEREFGHEEHR AN T customers. These leases are classified as finance leases and have
—EARE-—FE(ZE—-\F: —@AAEC remaining lease terms ranging from 1 month to 2 years (2018:
F)  BEERBEHEHR AR - 51 1 month to 2 years). The customers shall purchase the leased
BEHREZTE# - injection moulding machines at the end of the lease terms of the

finance leases.

CEMToT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
FE U B & T SRR X Finance lease receivables 42,968 37,951
YERIED Impairment (937) (1,717)
RN R E B ERFEE Finance lease receivables, net 42,031 36,234
BB EIERBE D Portion classified as non-current portion (4,215) (2,591)
BN D Current portion 37,816 33,643
R-ZZE—NAF=ZA=+—8 BE#EH At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease receivables
ENRREDEWHERBRERFESHE under finance leases and their present values were as follows:
(ERUNNE
ELPEBEERENRE
EOEKHEENE Present value of
Minimum lease receivables minimum lease receivables

(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018 2019 2018
JEURFRIE - Amounts receivable:

—&ER Within one year 39,249 34,571 37,816 33,643

E-F In the second year 4,329 2,639 4,215 2,591
SO ER SRS Total minimum finance lease receivables 43,578 37,210 42,031 36,234
REERET A Unearned finance income (1,547) (976)
EUmEHETEFE A Total net finance lease receivables 42,031 36,234
NEERHBENLD Portion classified as current assets (37,816) (33,643)
EREED Non-current portion 4,215 2,591
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—T-NAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2019

22. B mEHERNRE) 22.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)
BHE_Z-hhE=ZA=1t—HIFERL No contingent income was recognized during the year ended 31
B RBATER(ZE—N\F  8E) - March 2019 (2018: Nil).
JERRERERNSEREBEEDNOT - The movements in the loss allowance for finance lease receivables

are as follows:

CEMTFoT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
REA] At beginning of year 1,717 602
BRIk RIS SR EER Impairment losses charged/(write-back of

(st AHREEBEM) impairment losses credited) to the

FEEE(MaET) income statement, net (note 7) (715) 1,050
bE 55, R Exchange realignment (65) 65
RER At end of year 937 1,717
B2 - T NEF=H=1—HIFFEIREF Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 March 2019

BB & BRI FE N A

NEWREHERE B REEEETRESD An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
M AStETEEEEEE - BEXDER using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
BEEREUEEBEXNZEZE S E4ERIMH The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
BEHAHET o ZEtE KRR RIS of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
2 EEEELNSREARTSHNER S calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
FEIE - BRI I R AR (4 T8 R Y value of money and reasonable and supportable information
SEROEER o that is available at the reporting date about past events, current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

EHEEEBR AR 2019 F3H CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019 161



IR @ Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-AF=A=+—H 31 March 2019
22. EmEHRERRZ) 22.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)
BE-—FE—NF=A=+—HIFFZIRE Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 March 2019
BB I ERE N2 R E () (continued)
TREVIE AR EERE T E A A& E E W Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
MERERFNEERMRER the Group’s finance lease receivables using a provision matrix:
R-ZE-NF=ZA=1+—H At 31 March 2019
ok
Past due
ht-% kel
PARTR -BNEXR -BATR
B8 Less than 91to Over @t
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
EHEEEER Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 7% 2%
REEEEFETFT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 26,628 2,429 312 13,599 42,968
BHEEER(FETFT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) - - - 937 937
BE—F—- \F=HA=+—HIFFZFRE Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 March 2018
BB Bi BRI E 39 2R 1E
R-ZE—N\E=ZF=+—8  FiuipElkg Included in the above impairment allowance for finance lease
BHEEIRERE NRESESHE receivables, which was measured on incurred credit losses under
BE30E THEELAEEEESE & HKAS 39, as at 31 March 2018 was an allowance for individually
B 15 B VEE B R E FE UG 2008 B 5 K impaired receivables of HK$1,717,000 with a gross carrying
1,717,0007T « R EBER 2 EHEE B amount before provision of HK$2,372,000. The individually
¥ 372 0007T B VEE B (E B & 2 fE impaired finance lease receivables related to customers that were
IR ERERT S R B ANE 2R & in default or delinquency in interest or principal payments and
JEEAC AT E S S EWEE S v ZE o only a portion of the receivables was expected to be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2019

22. FEWmEHRER(Z) 22.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

BE—F—NF=ZA=+—HIFERE
BB EEHERE39E E ()

R-E—N\F=ZA=+—BHZREEES
TR 395 AR AR AR E R BN ELE
HERFTRI M BEFE 2 Rk H T
T~

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 March 2018
(continued)

The ageing analysis of the finance lease receivables that were not
considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 as at 31 March 2018,
based on the payment due date, was as follows:

CEMTFT) (HK$°000) 2018
REIER (W R 38 B sk Rk B ) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 21,708
BEALR TR Less than 90 days past due 4,825
BHLT—Z2—BN\+X 91 to 180 days past due 2,242
mERA—E/\TX Over 180 days past due 6,804

35,579

b S8 8 S 2 BB BROE 3  ER
TR B -

BB B I ERE 2 UGRIRRDS KB T
HASEARIRFLHENBUETS - &
RiBELS  ARREERR ANEE
BRUVESREE - AAFERDPERR
AERE - REAREBERRERE
SRR EIFAE LB ERE -

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group or supported by guarantees from third parties.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company were of
the opinion that no impairment allowance under HKAS 39 was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-AF=A=+—H 31 March 2019
23. I MRITHER 23.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
ISR TFR  IEREI D Pledged bank deposits, non-current portion 21 1,242
BRI - REhEH Pledged bank deposits, current portion 20,063 45,755
20,084 46,997

24.

EERRETHBRARMF ZEMRRT
Fak - HpE# 11,170,000 (ZF— N
& ¢ H%20,220,0007T) BIEE R E
RERTHETEFPEBEASEERMR
TE : B¥8,914,000L(ZF— N\ :
78 #26,777,0007T) AEFEREE 48 T 1
EEMRITARESR - ZFERTAEN

R 3R 1T 17 AT BN 3 430 B 404280
BIEEIRT -

Balances included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries,
including HK$11,170,000 (2018: HK$20,220,000) for securing
bank loans granted by banks in Mainland China to customers
to purchase the Group’s products, HK$8,914,000 (2018:
HK$26,777,000) for securing the issuance of bank acceptance
notes, included in the trade and bills payables, to suppliers.

The pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

HEeERBITERE 24.CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(EMFor) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
ReRIBTTER Cash and bank balances 648,255 541,313
P R R SR HR O B Bank deposits with original maturity of

TR=ZMEAZRITFR less than three months when acquired 19,562 70,251
I8 & RIR1THETF Total cash and bank balances 667,817 611,564

HrEE < RATHE FRARIT & B 17 U B A X BREX
ME - BFAEERSHOFFR  MEZL
HERZ=[A(ZZ-N\F : £RE=
BA)TEERER - LAERERE
RRBRAMBITRAEFRERZETH
DB RIERREA S - RITEFF
PRI S B 404085 2 B IR B RTT -

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

Note: The cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The time deposits are made for varying periods
of between 7 days and 3 months (2018: 7 days and 3 months)
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates or rates correlated
to a certain percentage of local interbank deposit rate. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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—E-AF=A=+—8H 31 March 2019

5. BNEZREBRN 25.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
RBEHARZENE S REBERIRERE The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
AEGTE 2R T T of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
BT T) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
N+RA Within 90 days 211,302 326,244
nt+—=z=2—daN+xk 91 to 180 days 39,576 65,552
—BN\t+—E=ZBATHEK 181 to 365 days 38,224 67,759
HRiR—F Over 1 year 10,238 16,302

299,340 475,857

ENE 5 REERERL MR E R —K= The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
EXNEARNGEE - ENBEZREBRERE normally settled on terms of 3 to 6 months. Included in the trade
HR B TR T B R B I B 7,792,000 and bills payables are trade payables of HK$7,792,000 (2018:
TT(ZZE—)\F : B¥12,282,0007T) © & HK$12,282,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30
NFGERBE=ZTRAZ - days.
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26. HtEN RN - EFFRBERENEAEE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

26.0THER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES
GE¥For) (HK$'000) Notes 2019 2018
aHmaE Contract liabilities (a) 53,496
BEWEET & Deposits received - 71,590
HEMEMNIRZ L ESTAE  Other payables and accruals (b) 160,098 154,999
HihETERER - FEST Total other payables, accruals
BENEHBEERST and contract liabilities 213,594 226,589

&6 ﬁ’\*ﬁﬁ#mu@} Portion classified as non-current

i portion (11,114) (2,258)
T ENE Current portion 202,480 224,331

—hF=A=+—HBEKZ%
—\FOA-ANEHNBEZFBN

2018 are as follows:

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April

T
—E-hE —\F
=A=+—H MmA—H
(GEETT) (HK$°000) 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
HEE N Sale of goods 53,496 71,590

AHBERERNERMELR - & Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver goods.
HNEERZZE—NEFRLTIEEHR The decrease in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to
BN E B qo i A& YR &) T8 UCROR the decrease in advances received from customers in relation
Ao to the sale of goods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continved)
31 March 2019

26. HihERHERFAX ~ BT EERSWEME 26.0THER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT

(%)

LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) BAEMEMERRESABHST (b) The financial liabilities included in other payables and

BELTHFE -

accruals are non-interest-bearing.

EMEMNERNMEFEESRRER Included in the other payables and accruals is HK$11,658,000
AlRE B R T8 2 EZE R 4R R earnest money in relation to a framework agreement for a
AEH B €8 11,658,0007T © 7 possible land development plan as detailed in the Company’s

BHEHRARFTAR-Z

“tNHZRAEA -

27 . BRITER

—NF+—A announcement dated 28 November 2018.

27.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

ERF=
Effective
interest rate )
(EEFrT) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2019 2018
BIETEES Bank loans repayable 19 2019
—ER . EBEA within one year, unsecured (2018:1.0)  (2018: 2018) 73,893 24,770
AEE 2 BEBERRTEFIAF B A KRG The Group’s unsecured bank loans are at floating rates.
E\ o

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

28. EHEBAERE 28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

168

AEBESEZWBARRMYES 2
HRZETRFLA —BETRIKRSED
B ESEZHBEARERZBAE
SEE - REBEHE  EEBERSFRRE
R EBZERKEN - R ER TRk
WEHET =% H45E - EES5E65
R IBRNFERE - RBFTEBFURES
BAMFEHAFE -

EfffIZkAKEZARZERKRERSH
R ZBRREREHZEEEE - UNUR
B8 F A REBAHERETE
AZEREE - ZEERMEARE &
AEENEEEENH - REQRAREE
& Bl IRE RS o

ZEEIE M ERAR  EREZHEANSD
FEER  RATSRARKEERBRNS
@,

ORI EERERRMNEERER
HiHE NHeERERERAZAER
BEAMENREEEEBAROARITRN
“TE-NFZA=1T—B#ET  JIAREE
B RBBHEGEETE

RBEPRZEBRBERRDOT ¢

The Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate the Old Scheme,
covering substantially all of its employees who were recruited
by the Taiwanese subsidiaries before the implementation of
the Labour Act on 1 July 2005. Under the Old Scheme, the
employees are entitled to retirement benefits annually based
on an accumulated base point, which is determined by their
years of service, with a maximum of 45 points multiplied by the
average monthly salary for the final six months of employment on
attainment of a retirement age ranging from 55 to 65.

The Old Scheme requires the Group to make monthly
contributions to the retirement fund. The fund is administered by
the Committee and is deposited under the Committee’s name with
a government approved financial institution, which acts as the
trustee. The assets held by the trustee are separated from those of
the Group. The Committee is responsible for the determination of
the investment strategy of the scheme.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in
the life expectancy for pensioners, equity market risk and credit
risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out
on 31 March 2019 by Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting
Inc., a qualified actuary recognized by the Actuarial Institute in
Taiwan, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

2019 2018
HriR = Discount rate 1% 1%
EERE &1 R R Expected rate of salary increases 1% 1%

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F
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—E-AF=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2019

28. EEBREEE) 28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

BEHEBETAEIEENTEARE
¥ 26,785,000 L ( Z & — N\ F : B
25,865,00070) + BELAENIEEEE
EAFEBREBIIEMNENNT7I% (=
T—)\F : 68%) ° FikAB#8,173,000
JOAP FE B T RR AR TS HR 154 SE Bk o

TRABEPRMEMNEABRNVEE
BURNMEDHT

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
assets was HK$26,785,000 (2018: HK$25,865,000) and that
the actuarial value of these assets represented 77% (2018: 68%)
of the benefits that had accrued to qualifying employees. The
deficiency of HK$8,173,000 is expected to be cleared over the
remaining service period of 15 years.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at
the end of the reporting period is shown below:

2019
EEER EEER
ERH BEERE
g0,/ 08P) i,/ (HD)
Increase/ Increase/
B (decrease) tLEHD (decrease)
Increase of defined Decrease of defined
in rate benefit in rate benefit
(EEFT) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
R% Discount rate 0.5 (883) 0.5) 1,578
ARGEEER Future salary increase 0.5 1,561 0.5) (885)
2018
EREN EEEN
BERH BERH
g,/ (fd) #1in,/(H9)
Increase/ Increase/
tEE M (decrease) R (decrease)
Increase of defined Decrease of defined
in rate benefit in rate benefit
(EETFT) (HK$000) % obligations % obligations
bipiE Discount rate 05 (1,141) (0.5) 1,498
RARGEER Future salary increase 05 1,483 0.5) (1,145)

RIS - TYRE W ERERS
BRE A BEBE Y T EEAE
BB 8 ) H - Kﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁikﬁ
““@ RIS 5 E A R AR A 3 T T

. RS R R BRI
Ry B AR AT
H AR R

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is
based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another.
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—Z-hF=A=+—H 31 March 2019
28. EHRBANEE(E) 28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
EGAWRRPERN B2 B HERSE The total expenses recognized in the consolidated income
N statement in respect of the scheme are as follows:
(GE#For) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
E HARR TS AR Current service cost 311 379
FIE A Interest cost 99 220
FENE A Net benefit expenses 410 599
EREEMNEEREEEN AT ECE The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair
wm value of plan assets are as follows:
2019
HEBFNBGRREA HARBRENENEHEER/ (FB)
Pension cost charged to Remeasurement gains(losses) in
the income statement other comprehensive income
ADgit i
B4 BVl
A Bk Bt FARM
hE% BE%D  REEE EYE
3 %] Actuarial ~ Actuarial it R’
E-)\E FISEE  Subtotal changes changes Subtotal cE-fE
BA-A BE included arising from ~ arising from included A% =A=t-A
M BERE Nt inthe  TAEE  changesin  changesin  EHEE inother Contribution B % At
LAprl  Senice interest income  Benefit  demographic financial  Experience  comprehensive by Exchange 31 March
(%) (HK$000) 218 cost  expense  statement paid  assumptions  assumptions adjustments income ~ employer ~ realignment 2019
FEBAEL  Defined beneft obligations 38,116 311 309 60 (10%) 115 %! (1,142 (766) - (1L%7) 3,958
FHEEDNTE  Fairvalueofplnassets  (25,86) - (210 ) 10% - - (935) (935) (2,201) 1371 (26,785)
BEE Beneitiability 12,251 311 % 400 - 115 %! (2077) (L701) (2.201) (586) 8173
170 BHEEEBRAT 2019 F5R CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



BRI @) Notes to Financial Statements (continved)

—E-AF=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2019
28. EHBRAIEE(E) 28.DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
2018
HEBRNBHERAA FARBRENENEHEEN/ (FR)
Pension cost charged to Remeasurement gains/(losses) in
the income statement other comprehensive income
ADgst i
gt EEv44
A Elleki Bk HARM
hE% BR2D  REES hkE
i I Actuarial ~ Actuarial It i
ZE-tE ASER  Subtotal changes changes Subtotal i -3
mA-A BE  included arising from ~ arising from included  EXHE =A=t-A
N BERE Net inthe TR changesin  changesin  EBEE inother Contribution ~ E A% At
LApil -~ Semice interest income  Benefit  demographic financial ~ Experience  comprehensive by Exchange 31 March
(3¥77) (HK$000) 217 cost  expense statement paid  assumptions  assumptions  adjustments income ~employer realignment 2018
THEAEL  Defined benefit obligations 35,657 379 383 762 () (53) 504 (77) 374 - 1,794 38116
SYEENTE  Fairvalueof planassels  (14,889) I e m - - (577) (B77)  (6l8) (10000 (5865
I Bengfit labilty 20769 379 20 599 - (63) 504 (654) (203) (9618 04 12,251
REEFBEERB ATEEXESEN The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets of
N the Group are as follows:
2019 2018
B RIEEEEW Cash and cash equivalents 14% 18%
AT A Equity instruments 74% 67%
EFITA Debt instruments 12% 15%
100% 100%
N2 [ 78 BN TN B B B B R E RRAE A The Group expects to make a contribution of HK$1,910,000 (2018:
FPEIVE L R E%1,910,0007T (ZF—N HK$2,417,000) to the defined benefit scheme during the next
F : B¥2,417,0007T) ° financial year.
RMEBR - TEENETZFHRFER The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end
MAatF(ZE—NF: £5)- of the reporting period is 7 years (2018: 7 years).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)

31 March 2019

29 B IE 29.DEFERRED TAX
FR - RELEHBEABELREELENT ¢ The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:
EEFEEE Deferred tax liabilities
BEREA
HRREN
TEREE
Provisions and
depreciation
allowance in
MESH excess of MNEH
Revaluation of related Withholding e
(BEFT) (HK$'000) properties  depreciation tax Total
RZE—+FMA—-H At 1 April 2017 26,118 3,551 - 29,669
AEERARERIGZ Deferred tax charged to the income statement
ERBIEFR(ME11) during the year, net (note 11) 2,296 1,634 2,452 6,382
fE 5 AR Exchange realignment 2,817 152 233 3,202
WZE-\E=A=F+—HK  At3l March 2018 and
—Z-)\#EA—H 1 April 2018 31,231 5,337 2,685 39,253
AEERARERNBRZ Deferred tax charged to the income statement
EICHIASRE(W#11) during the year, net (note 11) 16,059 2,188 100 18,347
AEEREZANERNG 2 Deferred tax charged to the statement of
EICHIA comprehensive income during the year 852 - - 852
0 5 % Exchange realignment (2,056) (352) (177) (2,585)
WZE-AFE=F=+—-Hz  Netdeferred tax liabilities recognized in the
RREAUBRAE consolidated statement of financial position
EEREARTE at 31 March 2019 46,086 7,173 2,608 55,867
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

29.EERIE (&) 29.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

BEERIEEE Deferred tax assets
HERE MEH EEWR
B Tax  Withholding Deferred #st

(EETT) (HK$°000) Provisions losses tax revenue Total
RZZ—tFWA—H At 1 April 2017 35,144 - (197) . 34,947
KEENIERAA/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the

(0B 2 EAERIE income statement during the year,

FB(WHL) net (note 11) (1,835) 1,172 (225) 236 (652)
WEARBEEFEZ Withholding tax on repatriation of

MEH earnings from subsidiaries - - 249 - 249
& 5 A% Exchange realignment 3,635 - 9) - 3,626
RZE-\E=A=F+—HK At31 March 2018 and

—E-\$EA—H 1 April 2018 36,944 1,172 (182) 236 38,170
KEERIERA/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the

(k) 2 BT TR income statement during the year,

X E ) net (note 11) 699 2,428 (438) (42) 2,647
WERRBEEFE Withholding tax on repatriation of

MHH earnings from subsidiaries - - 212 - 212
0 3% Exchange realignment (2,396) (77) 9 (16) (2,480)
WZE-AE=A=+—Hz Netdeferred tax assets recognized in

BRREAUBRAE the consolidated statement of

EERERETE financial position at 31 March 2019 35,247 3,523 (399) 178 38,549

RALBZHEEBEBEBEREE  $EH
KB & E 5 Rl &7 # 272,923,000 7T
—T— \F : B#286,776,0007T) -
75 180,732,000 L ( — T — )\ F : B
61,394,000t ) & 7% ¥ 22,736,000 7T ( =
T — )\ : #B1#20,721,0007T) © A K
HERSZEIB 2 A E) A& 2 ERIEF -
MNR-ZE—-AF=A=+—8 " BR®XH
B KB 2 7518 B 188 ¥ 14,090,0007T (=
T — \4F : B¥4,688,0007T) FE:H A &
RERT & F AN K EANTEE
BN ARE D A FID RS EE — B
- W TERT FEER TR FIR AT B8 o o] 4
BINBIEBE  WERZSBRBERE
ERBEE - EABRHKBEEBEY - &8
LB 166,642,0007C (ZF—\F : B
56,706,000t ) & 7 # 22,736,000 7T ( =
T — )\ : 820,721,000 ) K EE D
FEREEEER AT R TFEREE - &
Bt R] AR BR R A5 -

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Taiwan of HK$272,923,000 (2018: HK$286,776,000),
HK$80,732,000 (2018: HK$61,394,000) and HK$22,736,000
(2018: HK$20,721,000), respectively, that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilized in the foreseeable future, except for
tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$14,090,000 (2018:
HK$4,688,000) as at 31 March 2019 to the extent that it was
probable that future taxable profit would be available against
which the unused tax losses could be utilized. Included in
unrecognized tax losses are losses of HK$66,642,000 (2018:
HK$56,706,000) and HK$22,736,000 (2018: HK$20,721,000)
that will expire within five years and ten years, respectively, from
the date the losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

29 RIERIE (Z) 29.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

174

RIBHEEMEEOE - P BEABERIIH
SNERRAIEEREETIREE R B
10%MEH - B —TENF-A—Rg4%
BWERR —_FTELF+-_A=+—HE
FREX RO A o i B BN $ 2 T AE )
ERERFT AR IRL - BIF]REE A EIEA
HEBRE - REERFANERBRES
5%5%10% °

o - RIE B BIBBIES - mIEAR M
BERBRE IR KB FHRER21%(—F
—\%F : 20%) BT - Hitt - AEREA
SR B B K S B 7% S B B X B EE A ) A
PR 3% 2 BB SR N

R-Z-NF=ZA=t—H AEEET
TA AR B K e A S O B B % R OR BE R BB
EAME BN ERELENIE - A&
MAZHEBNEREEZREESKOE
#1,068,187,000 (ZF — \F : B
1,046,912,0007T) © & $%73\ ’ EZ%W%
RBEPKAERARAREDER -TEN
F—RA—HERIZER -

RZZE-NF=ZA=1+—H8  LEREMN
BRMELEZRBEKINKERARKRE
A B B B 1 2 R AR T FE R AR AE AR IR
BES 4B 48,106,0007t (ZZE—N
& : #%50,732,0007T) °

AR A E PR K 3 2 BB 3 A ] PR 1S
M & -

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement was effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rates during the year were 5% or 10%.

In addition, pursuant to Taiwan withholding tax regulations, a
21% (2018: 20%) withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group is liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Taiwan in respect of earnings generated.

As at 31 March 2019, no deferred tax has been recognized
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China, of which the aggregate amount of temporary
differences has not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$1,068,187,000 (2018: HK$1,046,912,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute their earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investments in subsidiaries
established in Taiwan for which deferred tax liabilities arising from
withholding tax have not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$48,106,000 (2018: HK$50,732,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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—T-NAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2019
30.® A 30.SHARE CAPITAL
(B For) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
JEIE Authorized:
1,000,000,000H% & 3@ A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
G A ¥E0.107T HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEEITREHAR Issued and fully paid:
630,531,600/% 630,531,600
—Z—\4 : 630,531,6000%) (2018: 630,531,600) ordinary shares of
TR AR B 50.107T HK$0.10 each 63,053 63,053

31. BB 31.SHARE OPTIONS

ARBCHEARBERRARBAE—F N
FAAZTOATRABE BT 2R
FERE L7 BR8] ([ BT
E IR

RIFBIRES - ARRESARBEG
ER2EAZNBERENRBBEARAREH
BT B WARE P PTIZ RR S AR
IR o ARIRIE AR B 2 BB
THETFHAE AR ERRBRAE LR
RZKER -

BRI ZFHBEEIT

(a) BW

HABRZSEARKEBEL S
AR B BT T LA 2B sk R -

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 September 2014 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, invite any participants to take up options
to subscribe for fully paid ordinary shares in the Company subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Share options
under the Share Option Scheme do not confer rights on the
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The particulars of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.
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3l.FBRHEE)

(b) BEA

(i) AEBEEMKESAERHERER
(RIFEEIEE 2 ER) S mE
BB R B 2 EAI AR 2

(@) EREE(THINTHIFN
17 BREEMBIIFRNTE
FILEEB(THIEZBEFR
B =

(b) EBEFRZEAA X

(i) AEBEMKESHAEREREKR
X i PR AR AR R FE ) 2 (EfA] 2 AP
BOZEFNERZFHAA X

(i) ANEREEMA K B FATAIZERBCR
HERZERBRRIZEGZ AFZ

(@) EAIEBAESERLE - KT
KERZBEAN  RBEED
e

(b) R ALHERRHEAE
FRIEAM XM SRR
R BERBEMEIEMEE
BEERRZRY
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2019

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Participants

()

(i)

(a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,
including any independent non-executive director)
and employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work
for,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Share Option Scheme) or any
company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(iii) (a) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,

contractor or distributor of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
in respect of business operations to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
or a company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

For the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the participants
shall include any company controlled by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 63,053,160 ordinary shares are available for issue
which represent 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company to any participant (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding share options), in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise approved in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up
under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
such shorter period as the board of directors of the Company
determines at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors
of the Company will determine the minimum period(s), if
any, for which a share option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted
within forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer
was made. The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for
an option is HK$1.00.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

31.

32.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(h) Basis of determining the exercise price of a share option

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a
share option shall be determined by the board of directors of
the Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of grant, which must be a
business day;

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares

of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets

issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share of the Company.

(i) Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has a life of ten years commencing
on the Adoption Date.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year (2018: Nil). As at 31 March 2019, the Company
had no (2018: Nil) share options outstanding.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profit
after tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When
the capital reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to
50% of the capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve
may be utilized at anytime to offset any deficit.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2019

32.RESERVES (continued)

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment

Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, the

Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a

portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which

are restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50%

of their registered capital.

33.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction

During the year, non-current deposits for purchases of items
of property, plant and equipment of HK$4,303,000 (2018:
HK$2,050,000) were transferred to property, plant and

equipment.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

R RITER

Interest-bearing

(BE¥For) (HK$’000) bank borrowings
RZFE—+FEOA—H At 1 April 2017 73,422
BER S TREEE) Changes from financing cash flows (50,000)
BERA Finance costs 1,248
IERER e RELETFE Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (1,248)
N Foreign exchange movement 1,348
WZE-NF=ZA=+—HK At 31 March 2018 and
—N\FmMA—H 1 April 2018 24,770
MERERELH Changes from financing cash flows 50,000
BEKA Finance costs 1,954
HERLIR S RE 2 BT Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (1,954)
HNFE Foreign exchange movement (877)
RZFE—NFE=F=+—8 At 31 March 2019 73,893

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019 179



B HmRME 2

—E-NAF=ZA=+—H

34.FEMERH

(@) fERHBEA

AEBRBELEHERHEE T
DERMERKENE (M BHRKRM
14K 15) - MEMEHR T < HEH
RNF—FERF - BEHK KT
EXRAMAXINRES - LRBEER
SRR EREESE -

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H &X&EH
RIFEE A AR M 2 TR REHE =
MERH 2 KR & EWHEFRE

Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2019

34.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain parts of its owner-occupied
properties and investment properties (notes 14 and 15 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1
year to 5 years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

BT :

(CEETFT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018

—FNRN Within one year 34,461 18,447

F_EEERE(BEEREME)  Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 110,043 12,663
144,504 31,110
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

4. KREHEZHE) 34.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) EREBEA

(b) As lessee

AEBBRBECLHERHAEETY
¥ WAERBRAE -WE - PQ
ERERAEHERECHEHRS
ANF—FEZRF  —FERFUR
e

The Group leases certain of its properties, office equipment
and motor vehicles under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties, office equipment and motor vehicles
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 5 years, 1 year
to 5 years and 1 year to 3 years, respectively.

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—H  £%H
RETAREEEHERN R 2 AR
DRENHEEFIRERNT

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

GEBETT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
—FR Within one year 3,451 3,259
“FERERF(BEEEME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 1,491 1,628
4,942 4,887
35. &% 35.COMMITMENTS

R T RS4RI EHEAEZ
Hh - REBERHERROEARALENT -

MR-ZE-hE=A=+—H8 BERAEHE
AR R b B T¥E5EY) - DEHE
REE 2 EARFEPES LA 1,822,000
TT(ZZE—\F : BH83,0007T) °

RZZE—hAhF=ZA=+—8 " BREE
EMERTBEREZME  BERK
% EENERBEZEREESGHDY
& #54,762,0007T ( ZF— N\F : B
7,957,0007C ) °

RZZE-NF=ZA=t—H  AEEEX
TEACE) N R HEH(E FRE & 8% 752,000

JC ©
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In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
34(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments,
which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the
construction of industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting
to approximately HK$1,822,000 (2018: HK$83,000).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments, which
were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase
of property, plant and equipment in Mainland China amounting to
approximately HK$4,762,000 (2018: HK$7,957,000).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had outstanding irrevocable
letters of credit amounting to HK$752,000.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group also had the following related party
transactions during the year:

(a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to
HK$23,204,000 (2018: HK$32,738,000) from an associate
at prices and on terms mutually agreed by the Group and the
associate.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of
HK$586,000 (2018: HK$1,509,000) and received rental
income of HK$914,000 (2018: HK$912,000) from a related
company, Zhen Jian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (“CC-SZ"). During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Group purchased property, plant and equipment of
HK$2,504,000 from CC-SZ. These transactions were also
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Group. Purchases of raw materials and property, plant
and equipment, and rental income from CC-SZ were on terms
mutually agreed by the Group and the related company.

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (each being
a director of the Company), together with parties acting in
concert with them, control the exercise of more than 50% of
the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien Holdings
Limited, which indirectly holds the entire equity interest of
CC-SZ. CC-SZ is therefore a related company of the Group
and also a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

AEEFBEIEABHH - (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
(CE¥TT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
MEEERH Short-term employee benefits 7,054 12,101
XEEEH Post-employment benefits 72 72
7,126 12,173

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2019

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

ERMEE Financial assets
P8 3k
RAGHEZ
SRIEE
Financial
assets at
amortized cost
(GE#For) (HK$'000) 2019
FEWE F NMEEIRR Trade and bills receivables 915,098
AR - ERRER Financial assets included in deposits,

HEibERETINERERE prepayments and other receivables 30,490
FEM R E M EARFK Finance lease receivables 42,031
IR TN Pledged bank deposits 20,084
He MIRTTHEF Cash and bank balances 667,817

1,675,520

ERREWRRIE

Loans and

receivables

(CEMTFT) (HK$°000) 2018

FEWE 5 M EBERER Trade and bills receivables 866,769
AR ®  FENFER Financial assets included in deposits,

Hih RS R B E prepayments and other receivables 24,676
el B B E IR Finance lease receivables 36,234
EIIRITIER Pledged bank deposits 46,997
e MIBITEF Cash and bank balances 611,564

1,586,240

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—E-NAF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2019
37. 8B T ESEE) 37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
A=K Financial liabilities
DB ENRAHEZ
SRIAE
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
(EEFor) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
JENE SN EEERR Trade and bills payables 299,340 475,857
O A EL D FE P BR R M Financial liabilities included in other
EztaENsasE payables and accruals 114,085 104,495
SFERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 73,893 24,770
487,318 605,122

38.

ERTANAFERAFEER

EEEMARESMRITET - HHRTE
R mBED - BUE B EAR M EREE
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o BRRITERZIFRBE DA
Mt AEMEMNER LB AENSREA
BZIERBDBINAFEEERAEEEU
Rk - FEERRNMSBRTRHA 2 TARE
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38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, the current portion of pledged bank deposits, the
current portion of trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
bills receivable, financial assets included in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade receivables
and finance lease receivables, the non-current portion of
pledged bank deposits and the non-current portion of financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals are estimated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities, which approximate to their carrying
amounts.

The Group’s finance team is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. At each reporting date, it analyzes the movements in
the values of the financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
reported to directors.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

.BEREEMEE

39.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@) FERRLEANCEHRESHEE

(a) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in

WRIEF R E L RIEEE

TREUUBHEHRSBAETH
ARIEBERF RN N E RS
RARRAE A -

their entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of
the PRC

The following table provides a summary of bills receivable
that have been transferred in such a way that part of the
transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition,

together with the associated liabilities:

CE#FT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018
S IEEEREE Carrying amount of assets that

REE continued to be recognized 35,811 37,171
e EERmE Carrying amount of associated liabilities 35,811 37,171
R-ZE—AFE=A=+—8 A&EH As at 31 March 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills

AESETHEBREZECEE THEN
EHRITEINETRERE((5E
RE])  AEERMNILESHERNE
NESER HAAXKREREEARR
Lok BREEEFENEZORR
Bt EREEREERENMAR
EELBENESESENE SRR -
BER AEEUEERBEERLE
EfHN - BREAEMEME =77
& EBRIEASERE-

receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the
“Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Since the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risk relating to the Endorsed Bills, it continued to
recognize the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills
and the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
endorsement, the Group does not retain any rights on the use
of the Endorsed Bills, including sales, transfer or pledge of
the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

0. HWEERMEE(Z) 39.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b) IERLBRNCERETHEE

(b) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their

186

WRIBF R L RIEEE

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8 x&H
MEETHERSEFGEREAS
#16,427,0007C( —Z— \4F : B
71,285,000 EEE THEABEE
WIRITES S TRINER (TR #
REEZRK])  EBEM L SHE
EMENEZER - RIEEREEE
BRBEHAFKIBEAE—EAZ
+—M@A(ZZE—N\F: —@AZ+
MA) - REBEFPEZERE - MRTTX
o ARIEEREERBREARRE
MAEBEER([HELH]) - BX
EECERRRIEREEREAH
MBI D B REFR - it - B
IFERR RS ERENAMERE
BEXBARNE SRR - AEBRES
BR2ERIEREEZBRBEZE
RIEEREERENRTRESRSE
W AEERBESHEREE - B
It BESLELIERABEZENA
FEITAEKX -

FR - ARBERBRERUIERBER
1® B R RER I e sk B 1R A
B SKEENFALRAERERF
B2 - ZEENEFFIMMAEL -

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H

entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of
the PRC

As at 31 March 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC
(the “Derecognized Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with
a remaining carrying amount in aggregate of HK$16,427,000
(2018: HK$71,285,000). The Derecognized Endorsed Bills
have a remaining maturity of 1 month to 11 months at the
end of the reporting period (2018: 1 month to 10 months).
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a
right of recourse against the Group if the banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). Since the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills, it has derecognized the full carrying amounts
of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognized Endorsed Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. Thus, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed Bills are not
significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognized any gain or
loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognized Endorsed
Bills. No gains or losses were recognized from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



BRI @)

—T-NAF=ZA=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

40.cREMEEBEERBUR 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
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POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables,
finance lease receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating
interest rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
closely and considers to take measures to reduce significant
interest rate exposure, if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net investments
in operations in Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales
and purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars
(“US$”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Japanese yen (“JPY”) and New
Taiwanese dollars (“NTD").

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in
transactions denominated in US$, RMB, JPY and NTD and its
investments in Mainland China and Taiwan and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$,
RMB, JPY and NTD exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

HMEE BB 2 RRBE AR T

®m, CEd) i ORd)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit

(EEFor) (HK$°000) currency rate before tax
2019

WA REEBTHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 660

M AR ETRE If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (660)

M ARESETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 2,507

MARESZTRE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (2,507)

i BB THE If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (1,204)

WA EEHETEZE If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 1,204

W & EEETLAE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (1,941)

M e S =Tl E If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 1,941

INEFE = RREE AT R

®gmORL)  Em GRS

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit

(GE#For) (HK$°000) currency rate before tax
2018

AR B THE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 394

M ARBEEE LA If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (394)

WA REEETTHAE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% (1,232)

MARBEETEE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) 1,232

fi B B $ETTHHE If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (3,834)

i B BB T2 E If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 3,834

(BRI I Fwan=| If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (3,085)

W Ee¥EETRE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 3,085
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

40.cREMEEEERBR (&) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

AR

RZF-NF=ZH=1+—HBIRAXER L
FRIEER

TERBEAKENEERR(RIFFHA
EETVERAIIBEHMEGHER &
AXTEENBEBHPER LR _F—NF
ZA=t+—HMNFREEROB)IHEER
R EEEEREAEERR -

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March 2019.

TZ{EA
BHEEFE 2HRREERE
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
LA
F-K& EZRE R Simplified Foh
(BEFT) (HK$000) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
[ETES Trade receivables* - - - 632,584 632,584
ENEEER Bils receivable
~ g - Normal** 282,514 - - - 282,514
DALE  BRFER Financial assets included in deposits,
EREEETNeBEE prepayments and other receivables
B - Normal** 30,490 - - - 30,490
ENRERERT Finance lease receivables* - - - 42,031 42,031
BRETER Pledged bank deposits
~ K8 - Not yet past due 20,084 - - - 20,084
BeRBLRE Cash and bank balances
-%848 ~ Not yet past due 667,817 - - - 667,817
REABTHERBIEERLT  Guarantees given to banks for bank loans
REEEEREEERN granted to customers to purchase the
RITER Group's products
KB - Not yet past due 11,088 - - - 11,088
REABINER 5 88 Guarantee given 1o a bank, at the maximum,
REERETEP for guarantee provided to a customer
—-KmH ~ Not yet past due 2,900 - - - 2,900
1,014,893 - - 674,615 1,689,508

* BAKREERRERESLCTANEKRE
A MR ) B R B IS SR MY sE 20 S 227p Y

O BRREBRRFALLART S - ANRIA
NEMBURRNEREET KRB - A
LEENKAZEERMEE B VHHERR
ERERBBREZEN  IEEELERHRA
[EF]-

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

*

For trade receivables and finance lease receivables to which the
Group applies the simplified approach for provision for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 20
and 22 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the bills receivable and the financial assets
included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continuved)
31 March 2019

40.cREMEEEERBIR (&) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

190

FERBE)

RZB-NF=H=—+—H8&X/E %

EERRE 2 EEENR S 77 TR T
BITEEEMSAKERMRZMBEEK
HIRIBENE -

FEWE 5 MR & R B E B RR KA (5
BIREEERSFEEEET REE - It
S REEREHR  ARESRMZE
ERE B ERE R E S5 - AR
AR EFRIAE (B SR E TR o

AEBEMEREE(BRES RBITHE
7 K AR W) BV E B R T RN H 75
MEDNTR  HEARREERZEFLA
MEREE - KRB EAZEREMBER
MELNEERR -

AEBREERALBEENEPRS °
STHEERRRERP /RXHH2DWE
TER - ARBEY T FEEAEFEER

G o
Z2

BRAKEREESRALRERRERE
EREENEERRNE - FTHEE
Ft o BER B IS ER M 20 R fHEE22 o

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 March 2018

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the
Group thereby suffers a financial loss.

The credit limits of trade receivables and finance lease receivables
are determined and monitored by management on an ongoing
basis. In addition, at the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
unrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank balances and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group is also
exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial guarantees.

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables and finance lease
receivables are disclosed in notes 20 and 22, respectively, to the
financial statements.
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40. cREMEERBERBE®)

AEERBBERABDESTE TR - &
REESEHRNER - ZTAEZEI R
TAMN: BNEZEREERFREBE
E: BRESMEBERERRLEWEE
HERSFONIHALRBALERSRE -

AEENERABE(BRIRBE)RNERE
HR(REATORFTENNRE) N HA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both
its financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables) and
financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables and finance lease

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based

DRI on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
2019
=EANLER
=EAR TRk
FEER More than
Lessthan 3 months and -E5f
3 months or less than 1to szt
(BEFT) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months 5 years Total
ENESREERD Trade and bills payables 293,753 5,587 - 299,340
DAEMERERR Financial liabilities included in
EAEENERER other payables and accruals 108,126 - 5,959 114,085
HERTER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 73,893 - - 73,893
BHARTRER  SAHE - Guarantees given to banks, at the maximum,
RIERERGETEP(EER for bank loans granted to customers to
AEBERNBITER purchase the Group’s products 11,088 - - 11,088
BUELRITHER S A8 - Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
RIEERGTRP for guarantee provided to a customer 2,900 - - 2,900
489,760 5,587 5,959 501,306

RIEEARAR 2019 F3H
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40. cREMEERERBE®)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

REBESEMR(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
2018
ZEARLER
=@EAR +=@ARX
RIRER More than
Less than 3 months and
3 months or less than #st
(GEMTFor) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months Total
BB S REEEX Trade and bills payables 434,129 41,728 475,857
50 A B Ath JE < BR R K2 Financial liabilities included in
EztEaENSsREaE other payables and accruals 104,495 - 104,495
STRIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 24,770 - 24,770
RS IRTTAI LR - Guarantees given to banks, at the
RAHEE - BIEEER maximum, for bank loans granted
BTEFPIEEELRSE to customers to purchase
EmRIRITER the Group’s products 38,385 - 38,385
IREAIRITHER - Guarantees given to a bank, at the
RAEEE  BIEER maximum, for guarantees provided
BIEE to customers 2,516 - 2,516
604,295 41,728 646,023
EARER Capital management

AEEEAEENTIEARARELREH
FEEENRE I MRFRENERL X
A B R ER K& AR E IR & BERF

Ny
S o
I

AR BRIR AR O R B T B T2 e B
HEARE - BRBAREELARE - K
SEFERAERTHROBRE - ARRER
EIEARKETHR - BE_T—NF=FH
=t+—BEZZT-N\F=ZA=1t—HLHF
BRN - ZEEAERZER  BEREFRF
I AE AR 2

AR Z’»‘%@Eﬁ%@/@/ﬂb@ﬁ%#/ﬁ/ﬁ\%
75 1,612,556,0007T( =& — )\ 4F : B
1,675,542,0007T ) ( B 42 7 B) & 2 6k 42 7%
BEBE)EEER  c NEB 2B BHER
EFREBEAEL -

RIEEBEARAR 2019 F

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net
current assets of HK$1,612,556,000 (2018: HK$1,675,542,000),
which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.
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41. R DRI &R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2019

41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
RABRIME RN T BN K ER D Information about the statement of financial position of the
T Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
(B For) (HK$°000) 2019 2018
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
RWE AR ZHE Investments in subsidiaries 758,808 725,995
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
HES 2= REN Deposits and other receivables 821 862
Re RIRTTETT Cash and bank balances 30,695 11,684
mEEEE Total current assets 31,516 12,546
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEmEMERERMETAE Other payables and accruals 4,019 4,526
FTEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 73,893 24,770
MENB BT Total current liabilities 77,912 29,296
REBEEFE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (46,396) (16,750)
EEFE NET ASSETS 712,412 709,245
R EQUITY
=B {TRR AN Issued share capital 63,053 63,053
s (haE) Reserves (note) 649,359 646,192
RETEMET TOTAL EQUITY 712,412 709,245

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH
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IR SRRMEE 2 Notes to Financial Statements (continueq)
—E-hF=A=1+—8H 31 March 2019

41. KRR TK(E) 41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

HiaE Note:
RARZ FEEMENT : A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
g0 EREE
= E iR &
Share Capital REBER
premium redemption Retained P

(GEMTFor) (HK$'000) account reserve profits Total
R-_ZE—tFWMA—H At 1 April 2017 509,580 295 81,674 591,549
REE R T K& Profit for the year and total

AF G A2 S comprehensive income for the year - - 110,130 110,130
HE_Z—+F=A=+—HIF Final dividend for the year

FEZARARB(AE12) ended 31 March 2017 (note 12) - - (16,394) (16,394)
HE-ZT—+tF=HA=+—HI1t Special final dividend for the year

FEZERRBRE (M t12) ended 31 March 2017 (note 12) - - (20,177) (20,177)
REIR B (A7iE12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - (18,916) (18,916)
RZZ—N\F=ZA=+—BRK At 31 March 2018 and

—E-N\FWMA—H 1 April 2018 509,580 295 136,317 646,192
REFERN R Profit for the year and total

REFH2ERE comprehensive income for the year - - 53,610 53,610
HE-ZT—N\F=A=+—H1t Final dividend for the year

FEZREPEE(AE12) ended 31 March 2018 (note 12) - - (31,527) (31,527)
FRERRR B(HTaE12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - (18,916) (18,916)
R_ZE—NF=A=+—~H At 31 March 2019 509,580 295 139,484 649,359

42 R ER 42.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I BHRERERZE—NFANAAZT+H The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
KEZRHEIRITET)E - by the board of directors on 27 June 2019.
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TRABIZ AR REERREAFEREE
EEARFENBRAKEEEFEEIERNZ
MEAR - EFXRS  JIHEBRHMBARZ

HERBRITE -

Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2019

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

PANSTESY ]
AL s EEEO
k& E Percentage
Place of EERITRA of equity
incorporation/ BWER attributable
NI registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BEREE
Held indirectly
TREMWAR D BR A F] = =Rl 100 SHE T Ik
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited® ¥4 #50,000,0007T plastic injection
NTD50,000,000 moulding machines
Chen Hsong Europe B.V.® Gl =ik 100 SHE T B
Netherlands Ordinary Sale of
100,000BK 7T plastic injection
EUR100,000 moulding machines
BETER ORI i, 3,000,000 7T 100 HEME
BRAFD® EaiEipN US$3,000,000 Property holding
Chen Hsong Industrial Park PRC/
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.®® Mainland China
ERKERAR AR EE TERE BT 100 SHE T EB K
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of

Limited

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

BRERETRMN®
75 #50,000,0007T

Non-voting deferred®

HK$50,000,000
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Principal Subsidiaries (continuea)
As at 31 March 2019

PANSESY ]
B3 s EZEDL
k& E Percentage
Place of SERITRA of equity
incorporation/ BER attributable
NGIE=L registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
Chen Hsong Machinery (India) ENfE Eimk 100 EORIHE
Private Limited® India Ordinary JE B K EL R 4
ENEE 12,550,000 Import and sale of
(== N\ plastic injection
EJJZ & £1,100,000) moulding machines
Rs.12,550,000 and including
(2018: Rs.100,000) its spares
EEEW(ER)ERATIVG O hE 8,010,000 7T 100 SlERIHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery (Ningbo) elEiily N US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® ©)® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
BEEMORIDBERATDO O FE, 17,130,000 7T 100 BUER I E T B
Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) el N US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® ©)® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
EHEEWME RN AR AR = =Rl 100 BE RIHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® & %165,000,0007T of plastic injection
NTD165,000,000 moulding machines
BIERERE CRI) I, 7 124,000,0007C 100 U8 R HE T
BRATV®G 6 Fh B A e HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and
Chen Hsong Mechanical and PRC/ sale of tie bars

Electrical Equipment Mainland China

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.® ®

EEEEARAT 2019 F5H
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Principal Subsidiaries (continuea)
As at 31 March 2019

PANSESY S|
AL s EZEO
k& E Percentage
Place of EERITRA of equity
incorporation/ BRER attributable
DREREBE registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
Chen Hsong (Middle East) Fze® (Ear=] BB 100 HE T
EERE Ordinary Sale of
United Arab @A 1,000,000 plastic injection
Emirates AED1,000,000 moulding machines
Chen Hsong Middle East Makine THHE  EHHEBH250,000 100 SHEE T M
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi® Turkey TL250,000 Sale of
plastic injection
moulding machines
BHEHECRINDBERATLO® FE, 7% 10,000,0007T 100 PHE B
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing ey N7 HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited(® &) ©) Mainland China moulding machines
Chen Hsong South America BEfm BEmEIER5721,000 100 SHE T B
Importacdo, Exportagéo e Brazil R$5,721,000 Sale of
Comeércio de Equipamentos plastic injection
Ltda.® moulding machines
B 1L T B 1R (R AR B R A i, 7,300,000% 7T 100 BUERIHE T
BRAR® G 6 AR B KB US$7,300,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection

Plastics Machinery Company
Limited® ® )

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH

Mainland China
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FEMBLR @ Principal Sulbsidiaries (continued)

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H As at 31 March 2019
PANSESY ]
B3 s EZEDL
k& E Percentage
Place of SERITRA of equity
incorporation/ BER attributable
NGIE=L registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
#ILTHIREE B R T hE 7,900,0003 7T 100 SUENMIHE TP
BRATE G 6 =iy 173 US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Precision Machinery Company, Mainland China moulding machines
Limited(® () ®)
BT EEE T B RE i, 3,000,000 7T 100 HENHEREBRSZE
BRARDG G =iy 173 US$3,000,000 Manufacture and
Intra-Italy Hydraulics PRC/ sale of
(Foshan Shunde) Company, Mainland China hydraulic motors
Limited® () ®)
RINEHRTREERARI@OO hE 12,000,000 7T 100 SUENMHES M
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision =iy 173 US$12,000,000 Manufacture and
Equipment Limited® ® ®) PRC/ sale of casting parts

Mainland China

fifat : Notes:

(1) HERBRINGBEELE - (1

(2) WRARBFINABREDRE - 2

(3) HERAFRINGEREDRE - 3)

(4) EERZREERNBZREEAWERE & @)
BERRRE LIRERB SR EERN 5 &R
WEREE B AR IR 2 Bfh o

(5) HEXAFBMEEMHBR (5)

(6) WEMBRREEMBMEIIFBELLR KT  (6)

FHAD R Pk 2ok & 5t AR F 75 AT B R A AR Ho A
BB R RERZ -

198 BIEEEBR AT 2019 Fif

These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

This company is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture.

These companies are foreign invested enterprises.

The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights
to vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a
return of capital in a winding-up.

English company names are translated for identification purposes only.
Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by

Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as

TS REZS © extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out
below.

E RESULTS
HE=ZA=+—HIFFE Year ended 31 March
(E¥For) (HK$°000) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
= Revenue 1,635,938 1,667,879 1,450,877 1,247,942 1,567,788
R F,/ (E8) Profit/(loss) from operating activities 124,918 127,025 77,037  (139,140) 43,908
BhE R AR Finance costs (1,954) (1,248) (1,385) (3,266) (4,966)
i AN Share of profits less

St Bl B 18 losses of associates 1,043 3,366 3,107 2,239 3,561
BERTRF (ER) Profit/(loss) before tax 124,007 129,143 78,759  (140,167) 42,503
EEEy Income tax expense (34,778) (26,312) (27,406) (34,071) (23,703)
AEZ R, (EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 89,229 102,831 51,353 (174,238) 18,800
FEN Attributable to:

KARERFE A Equity holders of the Company 90,279 101,877 51,485 (173,087) 20,356

JEERRfE R Non-controlling interests (1,050) 954 (132) (1,151) (1,556)

89,229 102,831 51,353 (174,238) 18,800

BE RERFERER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

R=A=+—H As at 31 March
(E#ETFT) (HK$'000) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
BEHEE Total assets 3,451,745 3,695,700 3,315,085 3,307,171 3,752,231
BEAEE Total liabilities (685,669) (812,720) (712,561) (625,100) (850,220)
RV S Non-controlling interests (14,144) (15,153) (12,601) (16,421) (18,341)
2,751,932 2,867,827 2,589,923 2,665,650 2,883,670

RIFEEARAR 2019 FH
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REYEFE Particulars of Investment Properties

R-_ZE-h&E=A=+—H As at 31 March 2019

i B REERAR HAOH

Location Existing use Type of lease

P I3 &4
BRE R Industrial Medium
LTS
R =2
ARF 319 - 505% - 5257
EHTXE
11-BiE - 12-BiE « 13-BiE
MBERREXE

Block 11-B, Block 12-B, Block 13-B
and canteen building in District B
Chen Hsong Industrial Park
No. 31, 50, 52 Renmin Middle Road
Kengzi office
Pingshan New District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC
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RESKBEAEARALE
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

BEMFAHAHIRIMAEEH13E155R
13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

E:E / Tel: (852) 2665 3222

{EE / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

#B1It / Website: www.chenhsong.com
EEHQ / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
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